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FOREWORD
BY THE

MEC FOR EDUCATION
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre continues to
be critical in the delivery of quality education
to learners in Gauteng, specifically in
mathematics, science and technology.
It plays a vital role in the provision of extra
tuition to matric learners through the
Secondary School Improvement Programme
(SSIP), the roll-out of ICT to schools and in
supporting the Schools of Specialisation.

through Sci-Bono, and has been running since 2010. In the
reporting period, 58 568 learners attended supplementary
classes and camp holiday programmes. It is my wish that
going forward, SSIP is implemented on the digital platform
as e-SSIP to optimise the use of ICT that is already in
schools.
The role played by Sci-Bono in supporting the Reorganisation
of Schools programme is crucial element to ensure the
success of the Schools of Specialisation. Sci-Bono supports
Schools of Specialisation by enhancing the teaching of
Mathematics and Science, and providing career guidance

Sci-Bono is key to the delivery of the Gauteng Department

and psychometric assessments to ensure that the relevant

of Education’s (GDE) mathematics, science and technology

learners are selected.

strategy. As we all know, Sci-Bono is a flagship science
centre in the sub-Saharan region, with excellent science

The opening of the Curtis Nkondo School of Specialisation

laboratories and science centre activities, which exposes

was a seminal moment in Gauteng. Sci-Bono helped the

learners to science in an informal and exciting manner.

learners in the school to construct a rocket and a volcano,

During this reporting period, Sci-Bono hosted over 20 000

which were demonstrated during the school’s opening. The

learners from Gauteng schools for their Life Science and

eruption of the volcano, the launch of the rocket, science

Physical Science practicals. Sci-Bono also attracted 295

shows and a science exhibition made available by Sci-Bono

950 visitors to its facilities, 70% of whom were learners and

enhanced the launch at Curtis Nkondo.

educators.
I am delighted to welcome Dr More Chakane, the newly
The SSIP is a supplementary programme meant to enhance

appointed Chief Executive Officer of Sci-Bono. I am confident

learner performance in Grades 8-12, in particular the

he will take this organisation to greater heights.

gateway subjects, in identified priority schools. Priority
schools are those that perform below the provincial average
in the National Senior Certificate. SSIP is implemented

Allow me also to welcome the new Board members who
joined Sci-Bono in 2016, and wish them well in carrying out
their responsibilities.
I would like to express my appreciation to the Board,
executive management and staff of Sci-Bono for their
selfless contributions in the implementation of the GDE’s
strategic goals.
I thank you.

MR ANDREK PANYAZA LESUFI (MPL)
MEC FOR EDUCATION, GAUTENG
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SCI-BONO
DISCOVERY
CENTRE

CHAIRPERSON’S
REPORT
As the Board Chair, I am pleased to
announce that the strategic direction of
Sci-Bono to be a flagship science centre both
nationally and internationally, as approved
by the Board of Directors, has yielded positive results. The institution went through
a transitional process, while at the same
time undertaking a restructuring process.
I am happy to report progress made in this
regard. The Board successfully appointed a
new permanent Chief Executive Officer, Dr
More Chakane, a Chief Financial Officer, Mr
Phehello Tsotetsi, and a Company Secretary,
Ms Mbali Mtshali.

The long-serving CEO, Mr David Kramer, resigned in June

We are confident as a Board that the new additions to

It is worth noting that even in the face of the transition,

the executive team will bring stability to Sci-Bono as we

Sci-Bono recorded the highest number of visitors since its

conclude the transitional process. The organisation looks

opening in 2004, with a staggering 295 950 people visiting the

to the new CEO to strengthen existing relationships and to

centre. It is our ambition as the Board to ensure the

foster new relations with donors in general, inclusive of

centre continues to fulfil the organisational vision of

partnerships; the CFO to bring financial stability,

capacitating South African society to be able to compete

sustainability and longevity to the organisation; and the

in the global sphere of science and technology.

company secretary to bring in the necessary governance
controls and to ensure the preservation of Sci-Bono as an
independent non-profit making institution.

2016 and the Director of Corporate Services, Ms Fikile Mapela, acted until the new CEO was appointed in April 2017.
Furthermore, the long-serving Sci-Bono Board Chairperson,
Mr Phiroshaw Camay, who had served Sci-Bono since its
opening in 2004, passed away in October 2016. In honouring
his contribution and dedicated service to Sci-Bono, the Board
will be renaming the Phase 2 Education Building the
Phiroshaw Camay Education Centre.
We are confident as a Board that the strategic direction
adopted will re-emphasise Sci-Bono as a key strategic
partner in the delivery of the Gauteng Department of
Education’s mathematics, science and technology, and
the Department of Science and Technology’s Science
Engagement Strategies, both of which are pivotal to the work
of Sci-Bono.

The financial year saw a decrease in comparison to
the previous financial year, and we would like to extend our
appreciation to the MEC and the department for the support
and encouragement that they have continuously provided.
It is also notable that funding and donations from other
government departments and the private and/or corporate
sector were still being received, showing that these
sectors still have a vested interest in the prosperity of
the organisation.
With the organisation now having a full complement of Board
members and an executive team with the key requisite skills
for an institution like Sci-Bono, we look forward to taking
Sci-Bono to greater heights in the future.

ABBEY WITBOOI
BOARD CHAIRPERSON
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EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY
BY THE CEO

Sci-Bono has established itself as one of the
premier science centres in Southern Africa,
at the forefront of science education and
science engagement. A core member of the
Southern African Association of Science and
Technology Centres (SAASTEC), Sci-Bono
continues to be the national flagship science
centre and serves as the deputy chair on the
SAASTEC council.

internationally acclaimed BODY WORLDS Vital exhibition –
which Sci-Bono hosted for the second time. The first was in
2013, when the centre recorded its second-highest number
of visitors.
Our support to the GDE continues to grow annually, and we
continue to be the department’s primary delivery vehicle for
its Secondary School Improvement Programme, which saw
58 568 learners attending supplementary classes and camp
holiday programmes throughout the year. Furthermore, our
laboratories, which service a number of schools in Gauteng,
saw 20 224 learners coming for laboratory practicals, a 25%

We continue to work with the Gauteng
Department of Education (GDE) in the
delivery of its mathematics, science and
technology strategy, as well as with the
Department of Science and Technology in
advancing and promoting science.
Although Sci-Bono went through a transitional period with
the departure of the long-serving Chief Executive Officer,
Mr David Kramer, the centre still managed to record the
highest number of visitors since its opening in 2004. An
astounding 295 950 visitors came through Sci-Bono’s doors
in this period, increasing our visitor numbers by 121% on
the previous year, this is attributed to a number of exciting
programmes the centre ran, but notably the return of the

usage increase. Our teacher development programmes,
although slower than planned, increased by 40% on the
previous year, and over 23 000 teachers attended the various
training programmes offered to them.
Revenue remains a major challenge for us as a non-profit
company. Our major contributor is the GDE, for which we are
very grateful; notwithstanding other funders, to whom we
are also grateful for their continued support. All the support
makes it possible for us to carry out our mandate, as it is
expressed in our vision: “Sci-Bono envisions a society with
the capacity to compete in the global world of science and
technology, and that is equipped with the skills, attitudes and
values needed to improve the quality of life of all.”

May I take this opportunity to thank the MEC for Education,
Mr Panyaza Lesufi, for his department’s unwavering support,
our funders as listed on the back page of this report, and our
Board of Directors for its commitment, support and giving
strategic direction to this organisation.
Without committed staff who worked diligently to achieve the
targets set for them, we would not have achieved our goals.
I take this opportunity to thank our staff who made it all
possible.

DR MORE CHAKANE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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OUR ORGANISATION

THE YEAR’S
HIGHLIGHTS:

2 000 000
VISITORS SINCE 2004

295 950
VISITORS IN 2016

121%

INCREASE, HIGHEST
NO. OF VISITORS
SINCE OPENING

1SOLAR ECLIPSE

1NEW PLANETARIUM EXHIBIT
OPENED BY THE MINISTER OF BASIC EDUCATION

MS ANGIE MOTSHEKGA

15% INCREASE
318-367
INCREASE IN EMPLOYEES

INCLUDES CASUAL STAFF MEMBERS
AND INTERNS

58 568

GRADE 12 LEARNERS
ATTENDED SUPPLEMENTARY CLASSES
AND HOLIDAY PROGRAMMES

23 654

TEACHERS TRAINED

SCI-BONO HOSTED

GRAHAM WALKER
ONE OF ONLY 2 PEOPLE WITH A PhD
IN SCIENCE COMMUNICATION

&

JIM ADAM
NASA’S DEPUTY CHIEF TECHNOLOGIST

1 600 BUSES USED
TO TRANSPORT LEARNERS TO THE CENTRE
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OVERVIEW OF

SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre is the national flagship science centre
in South Africa, and the largest and most visited science centre in
Southern Africa. Located in the historic, century-old Electric
Workshop in the cultural precinct of Newtown, Johannesburg,
Sci-Bono annually receives hundreds of thousands of visitors to its
large collection of interactive science and technology exhibits, and
exhibitions.
Sci-Bono started in 2004 as a partnership between the Gauteng
Department of Education and various private-sector partners.
It supports mathematics, science and technology education in order
to help build South Africa’s science, engineering and technology
capacity.
It works with the Department of Science and Technology and the
South African Agency for Science and Technology Advancement to
promote interest and awareness in the fields of science, technology,
engineering and mathematics, and is a core member of the
Southern African Association of Science and Technology Centres.
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VISION
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre envisions a society with the
capacity to compete in the global world of science and
technology, and that is equipped with the skills, attitudes
and values needed to improve the quality of life of all
South Africans.

MISSION
Sci-Bono’s mission is to support and enhance the delivery
of effective mathematics, science, technology and career
education in Gauteng schools, and to improve awareness
of, interest in and engagement with all aspects of science,
engineering and technology in youth and the general
public.

GOALS
Sci-Bono works towards achieving this mission by:
•	Improving the teaching and learning of
mathematics, science and technology in Gauteng
•	Providing career education to learners and youth
in Gauteng
•

Providing skills development opportunities for
young people

•	Promoting and improving public awareness of
and engagement with science, engineering
and technology
To achieve these goals, Sci-Bono implements a wide
range of activities and offers exhibitions for learners,
teachers and the general public at our centre in Newtown,
and through an extensive outreach programme to schools
throughout Gauteng.
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SCIENCE CENTRE

TEBOGO GULE
Chief Operations Officer:
Sci-Bono Career Centre,
Science Centre,
School Support, Exhibitory

OPERATIONS

Sci-Bono remains the largest of South Africa’s growing network of science centres, and one of the
most popular leisure destinations in Gauteng. It offers a wide range of exciting and intriguing
experiences, programmes, activities and events.
Sci-Bono has a daily programme of activity-based learning that makes mathematics, science and technology an
enjoyable part of schooling, and the majority of Sci-Bono’s visitors are school groups from both primary and high
schools throughout Gauteng.
Sci-Bono hosted a record number of visitors during 2016, largely as a result of the successful BODY WORLDS Vital
exhibition. A total of 295 950 people visited the centre during the year, the highest since opening in 2004.
300 000
295 950

286 049
250 000
235 433
200 000

190 715

150 000

160 969
140 009

100 000

117 389

133 860

50 000
0
2009

2010

2011

2013

2012

2014

2015

2016

Visitor attendance at Sci-Bono 2009 to 2016

HOLIDAY PROGRAMMES
Sci-Bono’s holiday programmes for the year included:
•

March: Food for Life Holiday Programme, in 		
celebrating the International Year of Pulses

•

June: Astonishing Anatomy Holiday Programme,
complementing the BODY WORLDS Vital
exhibition

•

October: Space Explorers Holiday Programme,
to celebrate Space Week along with the South
African National Space Agency

•

December: Gizmos & Gadgets Holiday
Programme, which returned by popular demand
and explored the cool science behind the
workings of gadgets

The programme involved 12 082 visitors.
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UNITED NATIONS
SCIENCE-RELATED DAYS

EXPOS & EXTERNAL EVENTS
Sci-Bono participated in a host of external events

Programmes and activities related to the theme of the

and expos directed at both learner and public audiences

days listed below were offered to learners and the public

with the aim of creating awareness, interest and

during the course of the year, with the following themes:

excitement in science, technology, engineering and
mathematics. These events included:

•

22 March: World Water Day – “The importance of
universal access to clean water, sanitation and

•

•

hygiene”

to promote interest in astronomy, telescope 		

5 June: World Environment and Biodiversity Day

making, astrophotography and related 		

– “Zero tolerance for illegal trade”
•

ScopeX, an annual astronomy expo designed

disciplines within Southern Africa

8 September: 50th anniversary of International

•

Cotlands Play Conference, a national conference

Literacy Day – “Education for the 21 century”

hosted by Cotlands together with the Department

•

7 October: Girls into STEM

of Basic Education and UNICEF, which aimed at

•

16 October: World Food Day – “Food security and

st

rural development”

highlighting play-based learning in South Africa
•

Scimatics – Grade 11 & 12 Maths & Science 		
exam topics workshop, aimed at encouraging
peer learning and stimulating knowledge sharing

INDUSTRY FOCUS WEEKS
Focus weeks aim to inform and educate learners and

among learners in the “difficult” concepts of 		
mathematics and science
•

Youth Career Expo, aimed at matric learners and

the public about the mathematics, science and technolo-

school leavers with the purpose of exposing 		

gy-based industries in the South African economy, and to

them to the various job options available, and the

raise awareness of work and study opportunities in those

pathways to getting into these fields

industries. Focus weeks are planned and managed jointly

•

Curtis Nkondo S.O.S MEC Launch, an event 		

with the South32 Sci-Bono Career Centre and the ICT Unit

involving the official opening of Curtis Nkondo

wing of the Teacher Development Unit. This financial year,

School of Specialisation by the Gauteng

Sci-Bono hosted 34 013 learners and educators during

Education MEC, Mr Panyaza Lesufi

these weeklong themed programmes, amounting to an

•

Zulfest, a science festival hosted by
UNIZULU Science Centre in Richards Bay,

increase of 4.5% in 2016 visitor numbers for the same.

KwaZulu-Natal, themed “Science in the making!”
We hosted the following focused weeks:

•

African Aerospace and Defence Expo, which 		
brings together the largest gathering of industry

•

Health Science Week

players in aerospace and defence, and 		

•

Water Week

buyers, showcasing air, sea and land defence

•

Sustainable Energy Week

technologies, including a static aircraft display

•

Earth Sciences Week

and air shows
•

Wits Yebo Gogga Yebo amaBlomo 2016, an event

•

National Science Week

•

Transport and Maritime Week

where we get up and close and personal with all

•

Enquiring Minds Month for Grades 1-3 learners

kinds of weird and wonderful animals, under the

•

Early Explorers Month for ECD learners

festival’s theme of “Move”
•

Science Expo at the Laudium Primary School,
organised by the school. The Science Centre 		
supported it through science shows and 		
travelling science exhibits
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SCIENCE EDUCATION PROGRAMMES
Enhancing the quality of mathematics,
sciences and technology (MST) content

and public visitors in topics around STEM subjects. There
were four unique science shows offered for the year, in
the areas of chemistry and physics. These shows were
designed to enhance learners’ understanding of STEM
concepts and phenomena, through entertaining and

teaching and learning in Gauteng schools,

informative performances. In addition to these, during

through programmes and activities that

2016 the team developed and presented a life science-

support relevant MST content delivery.
Laboratories
Within the financial year, after all three MST laboratories
became fully functional, an increase in the use of the
labs was seen. High school learners from disadvantaged
and inner-city schools use the labs to conduct curriculum-based experiments in chemistry, life science and
physics. During 2016/2017, a total of 20 224 learners had
an opportunity to utilise the labs. We are thankful to our
partners from Dow Southern Africa, which continues to
sponsor the Dow Chemistry Lab, Sangari SA for the
support given to the Sangari Life Sciences Lab, and to
FESTO for the support in the FESTO Mechatronics and
Physics Laboratory.
Apprentice Doctor Programme
The Apprentice Doctor is a lecture programme about the
theory and practice of basic techniques used in medical

related show titled Astonishing Anatomy, a first in this
area of science at Sci-Bono. Sci-Bono is grateful to Afrox
Ltd for donations of liquid nitrogen and various other
specialised gases.
Electronics Club
The Electronics Club at Sci-Bono aims to provide
practical skills development for Grades 10 and 11
learners in electrical technology. The sessions took
place on Thursday afternoons, during which the
learners assembled and tested various electronic
circuits. We had 20 club sessions for the year, with 241
learners attending the Grade 10 sessions and 88
learners attending the Grade 11 sessions. The Grade 10s
were tasked with building the Vidi-Shocker and A-stable
Multi-Vibrator projects, while the Grade 11s built the
Transistor Intercom & Mini-Metal Detector projects.
Rocketry

examinations.

Sci-Bono hosted four rocketry courses during the school

The programme targets Grade 10-12 learners interested

Denel Dynamics. The courses involved Grade 11 students

in medical science careers; introduced in 2010, it aims to
expose learners to the real-life experience of the use of
medical instruments, techniques and medical procedures.
The programme also exposes learners to career guidance
information, focusing mainly on the health sciences field.
Participation in the programme is open to all learners
interested in medicine; Sci-Bono sponsors learners from
non-fee paying schools to attend the Apprentice Doctor
Workshop sessions. A more intense and engaging,
weeklong Apprentice Doctor Camp is open to all learners
from both public and private schools.
The camp has grown tremendously since 2010, when 15
learners registered to participate. It doubled in size by
2016, with 30 learners subscribing. In 2017, 20 learners
participated.
Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics
(STEM) Shows
Sci-Bono offered a variety of shows involving interactive
demonstrations that were designed to engage learners

vacation periods in 2016, with funding support from
being taught the fundamentals of rocketry and applied
mathematics, science and technology while designing,
constructing and launching a rocket within their
respective teams.
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A total of 73 learners from 19 different schools

Mental Maths Challenge

participated in the courses. Learners were selected from

Mental Maths Challenge is an exciting competition for

various schools in Gauteng and mentored by trainers from

three learners that tests their mental arithmetic skills.

AeroSpace Research, which facilitated the courses. The

All schools in 15 Gauteng education districts have the

highest altitude reached during the year by a team’s

opportunity to participate in the challenge, and a total of

rocket was 413m, with a top speed of 304km/h.

2 730 learners participated in 2016.

SCIENCE COMPETITONS
AND QUIZZES

MinQuiz competition

Enthusing learners by involving them in

MinQuiz is an annual national science competition
sponsored by Mintek. It encourages interest in careers
in science, engineering and technology, especially in
minerals and metallurgy. In 2016/2017 a total of 165

challenging, fun and stimulating learning

Grade 12 learners participated in the competition,

mathematics, science and technology (MST)

mentored by 55 educators.

content competitions and quizzes, so as to
capacitate them to be able to compete on the
global MST stage.

SCIENCE COMMUNICATION
Presentations on science-related topics to the public offer
an opportunity for scientists and the public to engage in

SAASTA Primary Schools Astronomy Quiz

conversations around science, allowing the public to have

This national competition started as a Sci-Bono pilot

informed opinions on such topics.

project. It aims to teach learners in Grade 7 about basic
astronomy. Supported and funded through the South

Science Circus Africa

African Agency for Science and Technology Advancement

Sci-Bono hosted Dr Graham Walker, of the Australian

(SAASTA), Sci-Bono managed to register 250 schools to

National University, as part of the Science Circus

participate in the competition. In this reporting period,

Africa Project, an initiative to develop African know-how

1 000 learners in Gauteng took part in the quiz.

to engage schools and communities with science. He
performed a series of high-energy science shows, which

FIRST LEGO League Robotics Competition

were attended by 741 learners and 21 educators.

This annual international robotics competition both

Sci-Bono also arranged a capacity-building training

introduces learners to the world of robotics and

session conducted by Dr Walker for Sci-Enza Science

teaches them valuable life skills. Guided by their

Centre staff, at the University of Pretoria.

educators, teams research a real-world problem such
as food safety, recycling, energy, etc., and are challenged

Birthday parties

to develop a solution. The theme in 2016 was “Animal

Sci-Bono’s birthday party offering continues to be one of

allies”, and teams were challenged to identify problems

Gauteng’s most popular science-themed birthday party

experienced by animals and come up with scientific and

venues. With the addition of a second birthday party venue,

innovative solutions to improve human-animal

Sci-Bono hosted 7 721 visitors for 2016/2017 with

interactions.

science-themed party offerings.

In 2016 Sci-Bono entered and supported 15 schools, with

Speak 2a Scientist

10 learners in each team. Four of the Sci-Bono-sponsored

The Science Centre hosted a series of public talks on the

teams received awards in programming, project

last Thursday evening of each month. We invited scien-

presentation, inspiration, and judges’ awards in the

tists to engage the public on current scientific affairs and

regional tournament. Two teams qualified to compete in

news-making phenomena. The highlight of the 2016/2017

the national tournament, which was hosted in the Science

talks was a lecture given by Mr Jim Adams, retired NASA

Centre.

deputy chief technologist, in partnership with SKA South
Africa. Six hundred people attended the S2aS evening
talks in 2016/2017.
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THE SCI-BONO
CAREER CENTRE

The Sci-Bono Career Centre, supported by South32,
is a full-service facility that offers career
information, guidance and counselling to learners
in Gauteng, including out-of-school youth.
The Centre also supports parents with career information
and skills resources, to enable them to facilitate their children’s
career development and planning. It also supports life
orientation educators through learner workshops and other
related activities in order to enhance curriculum delivery. The
centre offers two main programmes: Career Information and
Advisory Services, and Career Development Support and
Counselling Services.

CAREER INFORMATION AND ADVISORY SERVICES
This programme delivers group presentations and workshops for Grades 7-12 learners, which focus on the world of work,
careers, study and employment options. The workshops are aligned to the CAPS curriculum and focus on the development of
self in society. The programme also supports out-of-school youth with job search skills, hosts a series of special events and
other activities such as girl learner programmes, focus weeks and industry tours, and also participates in community-based
expos. Except for the Grade 9 presentation series, most activities in this programme are seasonal and depend on availability of
learners at any given point in time. The following results were achieved:
Performance Indicator

Target 2016/2017

Actual Achievement 2016/2017

Face-to-face guidance

300

451

Learner industry tours & trade shows

150

645

Levi’s Entrepreneurship Bootcamps

500

757

Grade 7 workshops & presentations

520

920

Out-of-school youth

1 000

1 328

Girl programmes

2 400

1 521

Library users

3 000

976

Grade 10 workshops & presentations

2 700

2 957

Grade 11 workshops & presentations

2 700

3 123

Grade 12 workshops & presentations

2 200

2631

Banking, finance & investment career days

2400

3365

12 000

11 267

External expos

6 000

15 845

Grade 9 series

16 000

19 792

Focus weeks
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CAREER DEVELOPMENT SUPPORT AND COUNSELLING SERVICES
This programme is staffed by Health Professions Council of South Africa-registered professional psychologists, counsellors
and psychometrists, including educational psychology and psychometrics interns, and it offers a full spectrum of career
development and psychological support services. These entail career guidance and counselling, psychometric assessments
for subject choice, study and career decision-making, and youth support in career-related matters. It also provides
psychological supports to diverse clients through psycho-educational and psycho-emotional assessments, counselling
and therapy. Beneficiaries include parents and educators, as well as learners who participate in academic skills workshops.
The following results were achieved:

Performance Indicator

Target 2016/2017

Actual Achievement
2016/2017

Intern supervision and training programme

10

10

Advocacy sessions for parents

30

52

Ccapacity building for volunteers

140

120

Counselling and therapy for high school learners and adults

180

108

Career assessments

500

550

Assessments, feedback and reports

500

440

Psychological services
600
500
400
300
200
100
0
Intern
supervision &
training
programme

Advocacy
sessions for
parents

Capacity
building for
volunteers

Counselling
and therapy for
high school
learners
and adults

Career
assessments

Target 2015/2016

Assessments,
feedback and
reports

Actual 2015/2016

The Career Centre also co-ordinated and delivered a series of workshops and bootcamps for the Levi’s Pioneer Nation
entrepreneurship flagship programme. The project targeted out of school youth from economically depressed communities.
The workshops were also attended by accomplished entrepreneurs, who shared their wisdom, as well as inspired youth who
aspire to become entrepreneurs. In some cases the workshops were supported by the Department of Economic Development
within local municipalities, to showcase various entrepreneurial opportunities available in each community.
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SCHOOL SUPPORT
PROGRAMMES

Sci-Bono’s School Support Department

The Emasondosondo team is made up of specially trained

manages programmes and projects to

Mathematics and Physical Science educators. The team

support schools throughout Gauteng to
enhance learner performance, mainly but not
exclusively in mathematics, science, technical
and other gateway subjects. The department
is responsible for Sci-Bono’s Outreach
Programme, its supplementary tuition projects
and for managing the Gauteng Department of
Education’s flagship intervention, the
Secondary School Improvement Programme.
Secondary School Improvement Programme (SSIP)
SSIP is a supplementary programme designed to
enhance learner performance in Grades 10, 11 and 12.
The programme comprised supplementary, Saturday,
holiday and camp activities. Camps were divided into
walk-in and residential. Residential camps were also
divided into camps for progressed and high-risk learners,
which took place in June and July, and preparatory camps
in September and October.
The programme targeted 10 gateway subjects, including
Mathematics, Physical Science, Mathematical Literacy,
Life Science, Accounting, Business Studies, Economics,
History, Geography and English First Additional Language.
Sites were established across the province, and site
managers were appointed. Expert educators in these
subjects were recruited through the curriculum
directorate of the GDE.
In total, 55 686 Grade 12 learners benefited from
tuition during the Saturday and holiday programmes.
Emasondosondo
Emasondosondo is the isiZulu word for “wheels”,
and aims to put learners on the path to success.
Emasondosondo is co-funded by Sci-Bono and the Royal
Society of Chemistry, providing support in the
sciences and mathematics to learners in Grades 8 to 12.
A total of 2 471 learners from nine schools benefited in
the 2016/17 financial year.

reaches out to schools in disadvantaged communities
throughout the province to provide tuition, which is
blended with information and communication technology
and practical science activities.
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In 2016/17 financial year, the focus of the
intervention was at Curtis Nkondo School of
Specialisation in Soweto. At Curtis Nkondo,
321 Grades 8 and 9 learners benefited
from Emasondosondo.
Learners were taught Mathematics and Natural Science.
The results showed improvement in both Mathematics and
Science.

Maths Grade 8 – Levels
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Maths Grade 9 – Levels
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Learners performed well in Natural Science, compared to Mathematics. The graphs below show the evidence of
learner performance.

NS Grade 8 – Levels
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Most of the learners in Grade 8 Natural Science were obtaining between levels 6 and 7.
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NS Grade 9 – Levels
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Abaholi

District. The learners who participated in this programme

This programme involves a target of 120 Further

had been selected for showing high potential in

Education and Training (FET) learners who receive

Mathematics and Science.

supplementary tuition in Mathematics, Physical Science
and English, with the aim of producing bachelor degree

Talent Solutions conducted a battery of tests for selec-

passes.

tion into Grade 8 for admission to Curtis Nkondo School
of Specialisation. No less than 83.5% of the learners who

Additional subjects offered include Computer Literacy and

participated in the MES programme scored between 4.5

Personal Development. The aim of the Abaholi learner

and above 5, above 5 being the highest achievement.

support programme is to prepare learners with potential
in mathematics and science for successful post-school
progress into higher education and employment in the
science, engineering and technology fields.
The programme is co-funded by Sci-Bono and the Rand
Water Foundation. Learners had to undergo a selection
test to access the programme, and those who obtained at
least 65% in Mathematics and Natural Science qualified
as beneficiaries. Learners came from districts within the
Johannesburg region, their proximity to
Sci-Bono allowing for better accessibility.
Mathematics, English and Science (MES)
Grade 7 programme
The MES programme offered additional tuition in
Mathematics, English and Natural Science to 100 Grade
7 learners in Zola, Soweto, in the Johannesburg Central
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EXHIBITRY

AND EXHIBITIONS
Sci-Bono offers visitors a large collection of

Sci-Bono is the custodian of the Bloodhound Project, and

permanent, interactive exhibits on the Science

its supersonic modular car and driving simulator, both

Centre exhibition floor. We also host various
temporary and travelling local and
international exhibitions.

of which will be used in the Science Centre education
programmes in the build-up to the Bloodhound’s attempt
to break the current 1 227.99km/h land speed record, the
timing of which has been delayed with tests now due to
take place in South Africa in 2018.

In addition, we have our own mobile exhibits and
exhibitions that visit schools, community centres and

Sci-Bono entered into a partnership with the Danish

other venues in Gauteng and other provinces. These ex-

embassy, which funded a fact-finding tour to the

hibits and exhibitions help Sci-Bono to deliver on its vision

Experimentarium, a world-class science centre located

of creating a society with the capacity to compete globally

in Hellerup, north of Copenhagen. We are currently in the

in science and technology, and one that is equipped with

process of scourcing new exhibits through this channel,

the skills, attitudes and values needed to improve the

and have already received the new Our Artic Future photo

quality of life of all South Africans.

exhibition from the Danish embassy.

Sci-Bono’s exhibitry team continues to maintains a

The electricity exhibition is being totally reconditioned,

permanent collection of 350 interactive exhibits, and is

after being on display for eight years.

constantly working on new installations and additions to
our interactive collection.

We ran an interactive exhibit build workshop at the
Southern African Association of Science and Technology

Sci-Bono also produced the in-house development, design

Centres (SAASTEC) annual conference, which was held at

and partly in-house manufacturing of the Early Childhood

the UNIZULU Science Centre, Richards Bay.

Development (ECD) exhibition through the Department of
Science and Technology (DST) support grant.

We are proud of the new Mazda Rotary 13B cutaway
engine display that has recently been built for inclusion

The centre features an Education in IT exhibition initially

in the automotive display. This Mazda rotary engine was

sponsored by Microsoft, with DELL as the initial computer

originally designed by Felix Wankel.

hardware sponsor. We constantly require assistance in
maintaining and updating this material.

The exhibitry workshop maintains a staff of five
permanent employees.

The Science Centre continues to build partnerships that
encourage engagement with science, and raise awareness
of STEM education.
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PROJECT MANAGEMENT
UNIT

Sci-Bono houses the Chief Directorate:

•

Smart Boards (interactive whiteboards) and

School Support, which is responsible for

microservers to 377 township no fee-paying schools,

information and communication technology
(ICT) enrolment and provisioning to schools in

Co-ordination and management of installation of

thus converting these classes into smart classes
•

Monitoring and inspection of infrastructure

line with pillar 6 of the GDE Education Strategy

refurbishments for the Grade 12 ICT project roll-out

(2014-2019). The ICT Project Management

and full ICT schools

Office is also responsible for, among others:
•

Co-ordination, planning and reporting of all activities
related to the GDE ICT project

•

Data collection and management

•

Co-ordination of weekly ICT workstream meetings,
and provide secretariat

•

Ensure that weekly ICT progress reports are
submitted to the office of the Chief Director:
School Support

•

Assist in the development of reports for the Chief
Directorate: School Support for the ICT Steering
Committee

•

Develop and monitor the implementation of ICT
decisions using the Tracking Grid

•

Assist in the development of reports of the Chief
Directorate: School Support for BMT and EMT

•

Monitor and inspect infrastructure refurbishments
for the Grade 11 ICT project roll-out

•

Assist in the co-ordination and exhibition of the
“Classroom of the Future” at various events
hosted in Gauteng, on behalf of the Gauteng
Department of Education

The ICT Project Management Office also commissioned a
research project in an effort to create knowledge and
policy insight for the ICT project, encompassing:
•

The impact of ICT on education

•

A socio-economic study

•

A knowledge management framework

The following are the highlights of the achievements of
the ICT Project Management Office during the financial
year under review:

•

Co-ordination of the retrieval of students’ tablets
from all 15 districts

•

Co-ordination and management of repairing of all
broken retrieved students’ tablets

•

Management of tracking of LED boards

•

The development and maintenance of the distribution
list of all devices deployed to various schools
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TEACHER

DEVELOPMENT

ANELE DAVIDS
Director:
Teacher Development
and ICT Training

Sci-Bono Discovery Centre provides teacher

Workshops conducted this financial year were on the

training in Mathematics, Science,

Mathematics, Sciences and Technology content covered

Technology and other Further Education and
Training technical subjects for the Gauteng

each term. In the senior phase Sci-Bono, in collaboration
with the GDE, introduced the Grade 8 & 9 Mathematics strategy that aims to improve the average learner’s

Department Education (GDE) Teacher

scores to be above 60% in both internal and external

Development Directorate. These trainings are

assessments, by assisting teachers to master

implemented in co-operation with the Matthew
Goniwe School of Governance and Leadership,
the GDE’s training institute.

Mathematics content as instructed by the Annual
Teaching Plan (ATP). This strategy will guide teachers
and head of departments to adhere to notional teaching
times, assessments, diagnosing, and intervening and/
or remediating. Scripted lesson plans were developed

The Mathematics, Sciences and Technology (MST)

through this strategy, and distributed to all Secondary

Teacher Development sub-directorate focuses on

School Intervention Plan (SSIP) schools in Gauteng.

building teachers’ competency in curriculum content,
methodology and assessment. It also seeks to develop
teachers’ proficiency in information and communication
technology (ICT) and practical assessment task (PAT)
skills, through the Department of Basic Education
conditional grant.

On the graph below are the teacher targets and attendance for the 2016/17 financial year:

Teacher Training Attendance
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Percentage in Attendance for the Financial Year Per Phase
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ICT PROGRAMMES
AND TRAINING

ICT training programmes and capacity

A total of 160 youths received their certification in MICT

building in information and communication

Accredited Unit Standards in the End User Computing

technology (ICT), digital education and ICT
skills development have become an important

Qualification. A further 100 youths received training in
IT Essentials and Fibre Optics, in partnership with Fibre
Core. Also, 380 youths received training in the full Youth

part of Sci-Bono’s core operations, and are

Development Programme, qualifying as Certified Cisco

now standard.

Network Administrators.

Accreditation
In 2016 the ICT Academy added to its accreditation:
•

Cisco Instructor Training Centre (Cisco ITC),
accrediting the ICT Centre to train CCNA Routing and
Switching and ITE Instructors

•

Registration as Certified Internet and Web Specialist
(CIW) Academy, allowing Sci-Bono to deliver
internationally accredited training in mobile and web
applications development

THE DELL PARTNERSHIP
The Dell Development Fund continues its generous
sponsorship of the youth learning programmes, and
technical support for other Sci-Bono programmes.
This partnership is further strengthened by Dell staff
members volunteering their time and expertise to support
a number of Sci-Bono activities, assisting as trainers,
mentors and motivational speakers at Sci-Bono events.

THE CLUBHOUSE

Sci-Bono recipients of the youth learning programmes

The Clubhouse is an after-school programme for

are also provided with unique work, internship and

inner-city children aged nine-18 years. It trains youth

bursary opportunities within the ICT sector. Sci-Bono

in the following creative skills: visual art, music, video

assists Dell with the distribution of various donations to

editing, graphic design, animation, 2D and 3D modelling,

poor communities, orphanages and children’s homes.

coding and programming, fashion design and robotics.

ICT YOUTH DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

The Clubhouse at Sci-Bono is an affiliate of the Clubhouse

The ICT Youth Development Programme offers disadvantaged youth training in the following technical skills: MICT
Accredited Unit Standards in the End User Computing
Qualification, Internationally Accredited Microsoft Office
Specialist, Cisco IT Essentials, CompTIA A+, CompTIA
Network+ and Cisco Certified Network Administrators
(CCNA), and web development. The technical skills
programme is enhanced with Life Skills and career
education sessions.

Network, based at the Museum of Science, a creation of
the MIT MediaLab. It is designed to empower youth from
all backgrounds to become more capable, creative, and
confident learners.
This approach is grounded in research from the fields of
education, developmental and social psychology, cognitive
science and youth development. It builds on research on
the role of affect and motivation in the learning process,
the importance of social context, and the interplay

PAGE | 35

between individual and community development.
It leverages new technologies to support new types of
learning experiences, and engages young people who
have been alienated by traditional educational
approaches.
The programme exposes members to major ICT events
and conferences, and various bursary opportunities in the
field of multimedia. It offers international collaboration

Engage Kids in Hands-On Engineering. Use DESIGN

opportunities with Clubhouses around the world, and

SQUAD GLOBAL hands-on activities and videos in

biannual attendance for three members to the Teen

classrooms and afterschool programs, in libraries and

Summit in the United States.

museums, at events and at home, along with our newest
resource DESIGN SQUAD GLOBAL clubs that connect 10-to

Clubhouse highlights

•

13-year-olds in out-of-school programs around the world.

FIRST LEGO League (FLL) Robotics Competition:
SB-WOW, the Sci-Bono FLL team, made it to the

Parents & Educators. DESIGN SQUAD GLOBAL I PBS KIDS

nationals of the FLL competition and won the Best

Pbskids.org/designsquad/parentseducators/

Programming Award at the event

•

First Tech Challenge (FTC): our FLL team, SB-WOW,
was promoted to FTC, a more advanced competition
that includes real-life engineering problems, and it

ROSA PARKS LIBRARY
The ICT Unit, in partnership with the US Consulate,

built its first FTC robot. The FTC is designed for stu-

delivers ICT and career education workshops at the Rosa

dents in Grades 7-12 to compete head to head, using

Parks Library in Jabavu, Soweto, to about 200 township

a sports model. Teams are responsible for designing,

youths through a range of programmes, including

building and programming their robots in a 10-week

technical basics, web development, graphic design,

build period, to compete in an alliance format against

3D design and animation, video production and

other teams. The robot kit is reusable from year to

career education.

year, and is programmed using Java or MIT App
Inventor

•

Global Reach: three Sci-Bono projects were
nominated for the finals in the Clubhouse Global
Reach Competition

•

SABC: the Clubhouse was featured in a number of
SABC shows, namely ExFrontiers, Kids News and

Fun-Natix
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mwBPzi98cPw&list=PLDMWtmScpqrrpVjoJZ0X-QDrzqHzV-UjD&index=12
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-p9EhgoHSQ&t=376s

•

TEACHER TRAINING: END USER
COMPUTING LEARNERSHIP
This project provided technical, training and resource
support to equip 1 240 teachers with the resources,
knowledge, skills and attitudes to confidently operate end
user computing in the education environment. The project
targets 10-15 teachers per school.
A total of 614 teachers achieved the full qualification.

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT

Design Squad Global: the Clubhouse was featured on

An online registration application form was developed

the Global education website (Design Squad Global)

in-house by Sci-Bono employees for the GDE Lekgotla.

for its engineering projects
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=9231nn4ESTU&t=2s
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LOOKING AHEAD

Q&A – CEO: DR MORE CHAKANE
Why did you join the Sci-Bono team?

more than 600 exhibits, the majority of which will

I joined Sci-Bono because of its core business and vision.

address and speak to challenges we experience in our

The core business of Sci-Bono is science education. I’m a

communities and global climate changes. Our visitors

science educator. I have studied science education, from

will learn about these everyday issues in a fun way, and

my bachelor’s degree to my Doctor of Philosophy qual-

hopefully be inspired to make the next great

ification. Educating people about science is my passion.

scientific discovery.

I have been educating people about science in a formal
manner, and not non-formally and informally. Sci-Bono
gives me an opportunity to educate people about science
formally, non-formally and informally.
It is Sci-Bono’s vision to help society acquire scientific
knowledge, skills and attitudes; to help society use that
acquired science knowledge, skills and attitudes to produce innovative products and services to improve the lives
of all South Africans; and create opportunities for those
people to compete globally in the world of science and
technology. This is the most beautiful vision I have ever
seen that, if achieved, I have no doubt will take our country
to a different level. It will take South Africa to prosperity.
This is why I joined Sci-Bono – I so believe in its vision.
Is your passion education or science?
My passion is science education, educating people about
science. So it’s neither or.
What are some of the things we can look forward to in the
next year?
I am currently in the process of modernising Sci-Bono’s
science exhibitions. One of the exhibitions I will be bringing to Sci-Bono in the next financial year is virtual reality.
I also intend to introduce more exhibitions in the areas
of zoology and botany, which are not well represented at
Sci-Bono. I intend to introduce exhibitions that are not
only interactive, but also problem solving.
On international exhibitions, I am bringing the Lascaux
International Exhibition for the first time in Africa. The
Lascaux International Exhibition will be in Sci-Bono for 22
weeks, between May and August 2018.
Where do you see Sci-Bono in five to 10 years’ time?
I see Sci-Bono as the largest science centre in Africa, and
one of the best in the world, for the next five to 10 years.
We aim to welcome more than 1.5-million people with
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I INTEND TO INTRODUCE
EXHIBITIONS THAT ARE
NOT ONLY INTERACTIVE,
BUT ALSO PROBLEM
SOLVING.
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CORPORATE
SERVICES

The Corporate Services Department is responsible
for internal administration, logistics, finances,
physical and profile management at Sci-Bono, and
to support Sci-Bono’s Science Centre and education
departments.

FIKILE MAPELA
Corporate Services Director:
Facilities, Finance and Admin,
Human Resources, Marketing and Comms

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
The revenue recognised and related expenditure incurred
for the financial year is fairly consistent with that of the

It is also responsible for ensuring compliance with
all statutory, legislative and best-practice requirements, risk management, and the maintenance of
high standards of health and safety. The Corporate
Services department has four divisions: Facilities
Management, Finance (Administration and Procurement), Human Resource Management, and Marketing
and Communications.

prior financial year. The nature of the projects currently

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT

An amount of 573 899 462 was recognised as revenue in

The Facilities Management Unit is charged with the
responsibility for supporting Sci-Bono in the areas of
facilities operations management and projects management,
as well as security and information technology services.
The department continues to play a pivotal role in ensuring
that operations run smoothly within the Sci-Bono precinct.
Skills development is currently our priority, with the ultimate
goal of ensuring that we reduce reliance on external service
providers for trade-related services.
Sci-Bono regards occupational health and safety standards
as essential, such that regular inspections are now
conducted in-house. We are again proud to announce that
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre has been certified by the City of
Johannesburg Emergency Services as a compliant venue.
This will obviously boost our marketing, as we are now a
compliant destination.
We are continuing to perform some maintenance in-house,
with the objective of reducing operating costs for the
organisation. Only as it is needed do we require the services
of an external service provider, for any maintenance issues
that are beyond our scope and capacity.

administered and the limitation with regard to the administration costs recovered from implementation of these
projects played a massive role in creating the deficit. The
net surplus, taking into account comprehensive income,
was solely as a result of the revaluation surplus attained
from the revaluation of the building conducted during the
year under review.

the current financial year: Details thereof are as follows:

“R”
Insurance proceeds and foreign

38,162

exchange losses
Rental income
Amortisation of the donation on

541,161
3,162,719

buildings
Venue hire and cash takings
Donations received from private

2,338,387
19,831,125

funders
Government grants with condi-

503,139,634

tions – GDE
Unconditional government

10,324,464

grants – GDE
Revenue generated through

34,523,810

implemented projects
GRAND TOTAL

573,899,462

The different revenue streams per the above illustrate that
89% of the Sci-Bono revenue for the 2016/17 financial year
was generated through the GDE. This is consistent with
the prior financial years.
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Regarding expenditure, of the total expenditure amount

for the period amounted to R21 787 277, with 848 media

of R602 816 535 incurred in the year under review, only

clippings. Footfall to the centre, one of the department’s

R75 344 482 was expended to administer the day-to-day

main priorities, also increased dramatically, albeit off a

operations of the organisation. The balance relates to

low number the previous year.

project costs, encompassing the direct costs of running
projects under both conditional and non-conditional
grants.
As at financial year-end Sci-Bono is still in possession
of an amount of R124 708 559, held on behalf of donors.
These monies are to be expended in the 2017/18 financial
year, in continuing the roll-out of projects as agreed upon
with our donors.
Major programmes that were implemented in the
financial year were the Schools of the Future Projects,
which had commenced in the prior financial year, and the
Secondary School Improvement Programme, which had
been running for the prior six years. Other significant
programmes were the Maths, Science and Technology
programme, the Question Banks programme and the
Teacher Development Programme. All of the
programmes, with the exception of the Teacher
Development Programme, were administered on
behalf of the GDE, by virtue of it being the major
revenue contributor.
The Finance Unit is supported by the Supply Chain
Management Unit. This latter unit ensures that procurement is conducted according to the most efficient,
economic and effective methods aligned to our internal
policies and procedures, which are in turn aligned to the
Constitution of our country.
More importantly, the unit works very closely with all the
Project Implementation Units within Sci-Bono to establish
their requirements, in order to ensure timeous delivery
and adherence to the timelines set in terms of conditional
grants and other projects administered on behalf of our
stakeholders.

MARKETING AND
COMMUNICATIONS
The Marketing and Communications Department is responsible for Sci-Bono’s marketing, media relations,
advertising, general and online communications.
The return of the BODY WORLDS Vital exhibition, the most
visited exhibition in the world, to Sci-Bono resulted in an
increase in the exposure received during the period under
review. The advertising value equivalent (AVE) of coverage

HUMAN RESOURCES
MANAGEMENT
The HR Department manages Sci-Bono’s personnel
training and development, payroll administration, benefits
and industrial relations matters.
During this financial year the staff complement increased
from 318 to 367, and staff turnover went up to 7%. The
company has reviewed and revised its strategy in order
to reposition itself to be more effective and efficient. This
has resulted in Sci-Bono repackaging its service offerings
and realigning its organisational structure. An intensive
exercise had already started this year, where employees
were involved in the design of a new structure. Owing to
these changes, most of the vacant positions in the current
structure were frozen to allow for completion of a new
structure.
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ORGANISATIONAL

STRUCTURE AND STAFF PROFILE
Chief Executive Officer

Director: Teacher
Development

Chief Operating Officer

Senior
Manager:
Career
Centre

Senior
Manager:
Exhibitory

Manager
School
Support

Science
Centre
Manager

Senior
Technician

Senior
Programme
Officer

Technician

Programme
/ Education
Officers

Booking
Clerks

Exhibitory
Assistance

Senior
Programme
Officer

Senior
Manager:
Teacher
Development

Senior
Manager:
School
Support

Manager
SSIP

2X Senior
Programme
Officers

Psychologist

Programme
Officers

Project
Officer

Project
Officer

Team Leader
Outreach
Educators

Team
Leaders

Communicator

ICT
Programme
Officer

Programme
Officers

ICT
Trainers

Project
Admin
Officers

Educators

Admin
Clerk

ICT
Centre
Manager

Admin
Clerk

Admin
Clerk
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Chief Executive Officer

Director: Corporate Services

Senior
Manager:
Marketing &
Communications

Event
Manager

Senior
Manager:
Finance &
Admin

Finance
Manager

Senior
Manager:
HR

Senior
Manager:
Facilities

Procurement
Manager

Senior
HR Officer

Bookkeepers

Procurement
Officers

Risk &
Security
Officer

Cleaning
Officer

Facilities
Officer

Facilities
Assistant

Marketing
Assistant,
Receptionist
Cashiers

Admin
Clerk

Admin
Clerk

Security
Patrollers

Please note, these staff numbers include
interns placed at Sci-Bono during the
2016/2017 financial year.

HR
Officer

ICT
Officer

Payroll/HR
Administrators

ICT
Assistant

Cleaners

Gender

African

Asian

Coloured

White

Total

Percentage

Female

174

4

8

6

192

52%

Male

160

4

4

7

175

48%

TOTAL

334

8

12

13

367

%

91%

2%

3%

4%

100%
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The company’s policies and procedures and other corporate governance documents are
reviewed continuously and updated to ensure compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, and best practice. The government’s governance regulations are also taken
into account to enhance areas not addressed in the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and other
governing legislation.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
All members of the Board, except the CEO, are non-executive members in terms of the Sci-Bono Memorandum of
Incorporation. As at 28 February 2017, the Board of Directors
comprised the following members:
Mr Abbey Witbooi (Chairperson)
Rev Frank Chikane (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr Sathie Gounden
Ms Gail Campbell
Mr Andries Tshabalala
Ms Patricia Maloka

The following senior management staff members attended
Board and committee meetings, but do not have voting rights
in these committees:
Ms Fikile Mapela, acting Chief Executive Officer
Ms Tebogo Gule, Chief Operating Officer
Mr Anele Davids, Director Teacher Development
Ms Meena Parbhoo, acting Director: Corporate Services
The following changes took place during 2016/17 financial
year:

APPOINTMENTS

Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka
Adv Lentswe Mokgatle

o

Dr Khulekani Sitole

Prof Bongani Bantwini

o

Prof Bongani Bantwini

Mr Ganelang Zeth Malele

o

Ms Nandipha Madiba

Mrs Nandipha Madiba

o

Mr Zeth Malele

Dr Khulekani Sitole
Ms Keitumetse Bokaba

RESIGNATIONS

Ex officio member:

o

Ms Selemeng Mokose

Ms Fikile Mapela (acting Chief Executive Officer following the

o

Prof Mike Sithekge

resignation of Mr David Kramer)

o

Ms Hilda Mokoena

o

Mr Leonard Davids

o

Dr Stanley Liphadzi

o

Mr Tom Waspe

o

Mr David Kramer (CEO)

DECEASED
Mr Phiroshaw Camay

-

√

√

√

-

√

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle

Mr Andries Tshabalala

Ms Gail Campbell

Ms Patricia Maloka

Rev Frank Chikane

Mr Sathie Gounden

Ms Selemeng Mokose

Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka

Mr Ashley Dickens

Mr Zeth Malele

Dr Khulekani Sitole

Prof Bongani Bantwini

Ms Nandipha Madiba

Present

Absent

√

-

KEY LEGENDS

√

Mr Abbey Witbooi

-

-

-

-

-

√

-

-

√

√

√

√

-

√

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

√

√

√

√

√

√

2016

√

2016

√

4/5/ 2016 18/05/

16/03/

Mr Phiroshaw Camay

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

NAMES OF

-

-

-

-

-

√

-

√

-

√

-

-

-

√

-

2016

5/6/

-

-

-

-

-

√

-

√

-

√

-

-

-

√

-

2016

11/6/

-

-

-

-

-

√

√

-

-

√

-

√

√

√

√

2016

22/07/

-

-

-

-

-

√

-

-

√

√

√

-

√

√

-

2016

12/7/

-

-

-

-

-

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

-

√

√

2016

-

-

-

-

-

√

-

√

-

√

√

-

-

√

-

2016

24/08/ 28/09/

Meeting Dates

The Board of Directors meet quarterly. Attendance by Board members during the report year was as follows:

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

√

-

-

-

√

-

2016

5/10/

-

-

-

-

√

-

-

-

√

√

-

√

√

√

-

2016

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

√

√

-

√

√

√

-

2016

√

√

√

√

-

√

-

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

-

2016

√

√

√

√

-

√

-

-

√

√

-

-

√

√

-

2016

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

√

√

-

-

-

√

-

2016

√

√

√

√

-

√

-

-

√

√

-

-

√

√

-

2017

13/10/ 27/10/ 16/11/ 23/11/ 13/12/ 22/02/
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The company has the following Board committees:
•

Finance, Human Resources and Business
Development Committee

•

Board Procurement Committee

•

Social and Ethics Committee

•

Audit and Risk Committee

•

Financial management and administration

•

Human resources, industrial relations and training

•

Policy, legal matters and compliance

•

Business performance

•

Facilities and asset management

•

Tenant management

•

Marketing and communications

•

Health and safety

The Finance, Human Resources and Business Development

There are two ad-hoc committees that were formed during
the year, when the position of CEO became vacant. These two
committees were the Transitional Committee and the
Recruitment Committee.
There was also reshuffling of Board members in the
various committees. During the course of the year, a new

Committee comprises the following members as of
28 February 2017:
o

Ms Patricia Maloka

o

Prof Bongani Bantwini

o

Dr Khulekani Sitole

RESIGNATIONS

Board committee was established, the Social and Ethics
Committee.

o

FINANCE, HUMAN RESOURCES AND
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Mr Abbey Witbooi

DECEASED

The Finance, Human Resources and Business Development

o

Mr Phiroshaw Camay

Committee’s activities are governed by the terms of reference
that have been formally adopted by the Board. The committee’s responsibilities are to oversee, monitor and report on all
matters concerning:
The Finance, Human Resources and Business Development Committee meets quarterly. Attendance by committee
members during the reporting year inclusive of the special meetings was as follows:
NAMES OF

Meeting Dates
17/08/2016
8/12/2016

13/04/2016

22/06/2016

Mr Phiroshaw Camay

√

√

√

Mr Abbey Witbooi

√

√

√

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

26/01/2017

17/02/2017

-

-

-

-

-

-

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle

-

-

-

-

-

-

Ms Patricia Maloka

√

√

√

√

√

√

Ms Selemeng Mokose

-

√

√

-

-

-

Prof Bongani Bantwini

-

-

-

√

√

√

Dr Khulekani Sitole

-

-

-

-

√

√
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The Finance, Human Resources and Business Development Committee further had joint meetings with the Audit and
Risk Committee, as follows:
NAMES OF

Joint Finance & Audit Committee
13/04/2016
22/06/2016
17/08/2016

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Mr Abbey Witbooi

√

√

√

Ms Kgabiso Manthata

√

-

√

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle

-

-

√

Ms Patricia Maloka

√

√

√

Mr Sathie Gounden

√

√

√

Mr Stephen Tibini

√

√

-

Ms Val Hellman

√

-

-

Mr Ashley Dickens

-

√

-

KEY LEGENDS
√

Present

-

Absent

The following changes transpired during the financial year

BOARD PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

under review:

The Board Procurement Committee assists the Board in
matters relating to the following:

RESIGNATIONS

•

o

An appropriate procurement system that is fair,
equitable, transparent, efficient, competitive and

DECEASED

transparent
•

The promotion of efficient, effective and economic
o

use of resources
•

Effective planning and implementation of

Mr Phiroshaw Camay

APPOINTMENTS

procurement processes
•

Mr Len Davids

Approval of bids as recommended by the bid
o

adjudication committee.

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle

The attendance of meetings was as follows:
NAMES OF

Procurement Meeting
30/05/
27/06/

4/04/

25/04/

21/09/

7/12/

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

Mr Sathie Gounden

√

√

√

-

√

-

Mr Phiroshaw Camay

√

√

√

√

-

-

Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka

-

√

√

√

-

-

Mr Abbey Witbooi

-

-

-

-

√

-

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle

-

-

-

-

-

√

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

KEY LEGENDS
√

Present

-

Absent
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SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
The committee is responsible for monitoring the company’s social and ethics responsibilities, having regard to any relevant
legislation, other legal requirements or prevailing codes of best practice, with regard to matters relating to social and
economic development, including the company’s standing in terms of the goals and purpose of the 10 principles set out in
the United Nations Global Compact Principles.
The attendance at meetings was as follows:
NAMES OF

Meeting Dates
10/08/2016

6/02/2017

Ms Gail Campbell

√

-

Rev Frank Chikane

√

√

Mr Andries Tshabalala

-

√

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

KEY LEGENDS
√

Present

-

Absent

AD-HOC COMMITTEES

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

These committees were the Transitional Committee and

The Audit and Risk Committee charter requires that the

Recruitment Committee.

committee comprises a minimum of three members. The
following changes regarding the members took place during

TRANSITIONAL COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS

the financial year.

o

Mr Phiroshaw Camay

RESIGNATIONS

o

Mr Abbey Witbooi

o

Ms Patricia Maloka

o

Ms Val Hellman

o

Adv Lentswe Mokgatle

RESIGNATIONS

o

Mr Ashley Dickens

o

APPOINTMENTS

Mr Phiroshaw Camay (deceased)

o

Ms Nandipha Madiba

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
28 FEBRUARY 2017
The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) herewith presents its report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017, as
required by the Companies Act 71 of 2008.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE
The ARC was established in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The ARC charter requires that ARC
comprise a minimum of three members. The ARC comprises four members, including the chairperson. During the financial
year ended 28 February 2017 ARC met on four occasions, and the attendance is shown in the table below:
NAMES OF
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

20/04/2016

Audit & Risk Meetings
27/06/2016
31/01/2017

21/02/2017

Mr Ashley Dickens

-

√

√

-

Mr Sathie Gounden

-

√

√

√

Mr Stephen Tibini

-

√

√

√

Ms Kgabiso Manthata

√

√

√

√
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The ARC also met jointly with the Finance, Human Resources

Evaluation of the Annual Financial Statements

and Business Development Committee.

The ARC wishes to indicate that it performed a review on the
financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2017,

Audit and Risk Committee responsibility

focusing on the following:

The ARC reports that it has, as far as it was possible, complied with its responsibilities arising from the ARC charter.

•

Significant financial reporting judgments and
estimates contained in the annual financial

The ARC has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference
as its charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with its

statements
•

charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

Clarity and completeness of disclosure, and whether
disclosures made have been set properly in context

•

Quality and acceptability of, and any changes in,
accounting policies and practices

Internal audit

•

During the year under review, the ARC engaged the appointed
internal audit company through approval of an annual audit

requirements
•

plan to ensure that the entity had maintained an effective,
efficient and transparent system of financial, risk manage-

Compliance with accounting standards and legal
Significant adjustments and/or unadjusted
differences resulting from the audit

•

ment and internal control.

Reflection of unusual circumstances or events, and
management’s explanation for the accounting
treatment adopted

In line with the King III Code on Corporate Governance

•

Reasons for major year-on-year fluctuations

requirements, internal audit is expected to provide the ARC

•

Asset valuations and revaluations

and management with assurance that the internal controls

•

Calculation and levels of general and specific

are appropriate and effective. The company follows a
combined assurance approach model.
The internal audit plan was approved by the ARC and the

provisions
•

Write-offs and reserve transfers

•

The basis for the going concern assumption

•

The impact of the internal control deficiencies in

function of internal audit commenced subsequent to the
year-end.

the revenue recognised
•

The impact and disclosure of events after
reporting date.

Effectiveness of internal controls
From the reports of external audit as well as the work

External auditor’s report

conducted by internal audit, it was noted that there are still

The ARC concurs with and accepts the conclusion and audit

deficiencies in the system of internal control environment

opinion of the external auditors on the annual financial state-

and deviations therefrom. Management has developed action

ments, and is of the view that the audited financial statements

plans to mitigate the internal control deficiencies. The action

be accepted and read together with the report of the external

plans were monitored and will continue being monitored until

auditors.

the deficiencies are resolved.
The external audit function is independent of the entity. The
Governance of risk

ARC has met with the external auditors to ensure that there

The ARC is responsible for the oversight of the risk

are no unresolved issues, and acknowledges the diligence

management function. The ARC has reviewed the strategic

and co-operation of its team.

and operational risk register and however is not completely
satisfied with the risk management process, and has

On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee:

recommended certain improvements to be made. The ARC
will monitor progress with regard to this.
The quality of management and quarterly reports
The ARC was satisfied with the content and quality of
management and quarterly reports prepared and issued
during the year under review. The ARC has engaged with
management to remedy shortcomings. The ARC will monitor
progress made by management on the quarterly reports.

MR S GOUNDEN
CHAIRMAN
22 NOVEMBER 2017

THANK YOU TO
OUR SPONSORS:

The activities of the Sci-Bono Discovery Centre are funded
primarily by the Gauteng Department of Education (GDE).
Thank you to our colleagues at the GDE for their continued
support and encouragement.
Sci-Bono also received valuable support from its
partners in the private sector and from the local
and international community.

AFROX

Gauteng Department of Education

Anglo American Chairman’s Fund

Matthew Goniwe School of Leadership and Governance

Charities Aid Foundation

Murray & Roberts

Dell

Museum of Science

Dell SA Development Fund

Planetarium

Denel SOC

Rand Water Foundation

Department of Science and Technology

Royal Society of Chemistry

DOW Chemicals

Association of Science Centres (ASTC)

Edu-Loan (Pty) Limited

SAASTA

ETDP SETA

Sangari SA

Export Credit Insurance Corporation

Skateboard

Fibreco

South32
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GENERAL

INFORMATION
GENERAL INFORMATION
Country of Incorporation and Domicile Nature of
Business and Principal Activities
Directors

Mr Phiroshaw Camay
Mr Abbey Witbooi
Ms Gail Campbell
Mr Sathie Gounden
Rev Frank Chikane
Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka
Ms Patrica Maloka
Adv Lentswe Mokgatle
Prof Bongani Bantwini
Mr Ganelang Zeth Malele
Mrs Nandipha Madiba
Dr Khulekani Sitole
Mr Andries Tshabalala
Ms Keitumetse Bokaba
Prof Mike Sathekge
Ms Hilda Mokoena
Mr Leonard Davids
Dr Stanley Liphadzi
Ms Selemeng Mokose
Mr Tom Waspe
Mr. David Kramer

Registered Office

Sci-Bono Discovery Centre
Cnr. Miriam Makeba & President Street
Newtown
2001

Business Address

Sci-Bono Discovery Centre
Miriam Makeba & President Street
Newtown
2001

Postal Address

PO Box 61882
Marshalltown
2107

Bankers

Standard Bank of South Africa

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche
Chartered Accountants (S.A.)
Registered Auditor

Secretary

Ms Mbali Mtshali

Tax Reference

Number

9058859159

Preparer

The financial statements were compiled internally by:
Mr Phehello Tsotetsi (CFO)

South Africa
Science and exhibition centre
Deceased 1 October 2016

Resigned 16 March 2016
Resigned 7 January 2016
Resigned 18 May 2016
Resigned 18 May 2016
Resigned 24 August 2016
Resigned 1 July 2016
Resigned 30 June 2016
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
AND APPROVAL

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVALS

The
are required
required in
in terms
terms ofofthe
theCompanies
Companies
of 2008
to maintain
adequate
accounting
The directors
directors are
ActAct
71 71
of 2008
to maintain
adequate
accounting
records
responsible for
the content
content and
andintegrity
integrityofofthe
thefinancial
financialstatements
statementsand
andrelated
relatedfinancial
financial
records and
and are
are responsible
for the
information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly
information
included
in this
It is their
ensure year
that the
statements
fairly
present
the state
of affairs
of report.
the company
as atresponsibility
the end of thetofinancial
and financial
the results
of its operations
present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and the results of its
and cash flow for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The
operations
and cash
flow for the
period then
ended, in conformity
International
Financial Reporting
external
auditors
are engaged
to express
an independent
opinion on with
the financial
statements.

Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial

The
financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in
statements.
terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently
applied
and supported
by reasonable
andinprudent
judgements
and estimates.
The financial
statements
are prepared
accordance
with International
Financial Reporting Standards and

in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently
applied
and supported
by reasonable
andultimately
prudent judgements
acknowledge
The
directors
acknowledge
that they are
responsibleand
for estimates.The
the system of directors
internal financial
control
that
they
are
ultimately
responsible
for
the
system
of
internal
financial
c
ontrol
established
by
the company
established by the company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment.
and
placethe
considerable
maintaining a strong
controlsets
environment.
To enable
directors
To
enable
directors toimportance
meet theseonresponsibilities,
the directors
standards for
internalthe
control
aimed
toreducing
meet these
theindirectors
sets standards
internal
control
aimed
reducing
the risk
at
the responsibilities,
risk of error or loss
a cost effective
manner.for
The
standards
include
the at
proper
delegation
of
of error or losswithin
in a cost
effective
manner.
The standards
the proper
delegation
of responsibilities
responsibilities
a clearly
defined
framework,
effectiveinclude
accounting
procedures
and adequate
segregation
within
a clearly
defined
framework,
effective
procedures
and adequate
segregation
of duties
of
duties
to ensure
an acceptable
level
of risk.accounting
These controls
are monitored
throughout
the company
and all
to
ensure
an
acceptable
level
of
risk.
These
controls
are
monitored
throughout
the
company
and
all
employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company’s business
is
employeesinare
requiredthat
to maintain
the highest
ethical standards
ensuringThe
thefocus
company’s
conducted
a manner
in all reasonable
circumstances
is abovein
reproach.
of risk business
management
is the
conducted
in aismanner
that in all
reasonable
circumstances
is aboveall
reproach.
The focus
of risk
in
company
on identifying,
assessing,
managing
and monitoring
known forms
of risk
across the
management
in
the
company
is
on
identifying,
assessing,
managing
and
monitoring
all
known
of
company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it forms
by ensuring
risk
across
the
company.
While
operating
risk
cannot
be
fully
eliminated,
the
company
endeavours
to
that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
minimise it by procedures
ensuring that
predetermined
andappropriate
constraints.infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied
and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the
system
of internal
control
provides
reasonable
assurance that
financial records
may
be relied onthat
for the
The directors
are of
the opinion,
based
on the information
andthe
explanations
given by
management
system of internal
control provides
reasonable
assurance
that of
theinternal
financial
recordscontrol
may be
relied
on for
the
preparation
of the financial
statements.
However,
any system
financial
can
provide
only
preparationand
of the
However,
any system
of internal
financial control can provide only
reasonable,
notfinancial
absolute,statements.
assurance against
material
misstatement
or loss.
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
Subsequent the reporting period, it was identified that a financial loss had occurred due to financial misconduct
Subsequent
the gate
reporting
period,
it was case
identified
a f i with
nancial
hadAfrican
occurred
dueService
to financial
arising
from the
takings.
A criminal
was that
opened
the loss
South
Police
and the
misconduct arising from the gate takings. A criminal case was opened with the South African Police Service
investigation is still ongoing as at date of this report.
and the investigation is still ongoing as at date of this report.
Thedirectors
directorshave
havereviewed
reviewedthe
thecompany’s
company’scash
cash
flow
forecast
year
February
2018
in light
the
The
flow
forecast
forfor
thethe
year
to to
28 28
February
2018
and,and,
in the
light
of
this
review
and
the
current
financial
position,
they
are
satisfied
that
the
company
has
or
has
access
of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has or has access to
to adequate
resources
to continue
in operational
existence
forforeseeable
the foreseeable
future.
adequate
resources
to continue
in operational
existence
for the
future.

The
auditing and
reporting on the
the company’s
company’s financial
financial
The external
external auditors
auditors are
are responsible
responsible for
for independently
independently auditing
and reporting
statements.The
The financial
financialstatements
statements have
have been examined
statements.
examined by
bythe
thecompany’s
company’sexternal
externalauditors
auditorsand
andtheir
their
report
is
presented
on
page
56.
report is presented on page 56.
The
been prepared
prepared on
the going
going concern
concern basis,
The financial
financialstatements
statementsset
setout
outon
onpages
pages60
60to
to 87,
87, which
which have
have been
on the
basis,

were approved
approved by
by the
the directors
directorson
on17
17November
November2017
2017and
andwere
weresigned
signedononitsits
behalf
were
behalf
by:by:

Mr Abbey Witbooi
Board Chairperson

Dr Moretsele Chakane
Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE DIRECTORS OF SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE NPC
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC set out on pages 60 to
87, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 28 February 2017, and the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC as at 28 February 2017, and its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs),
except for the going concern assumptions being applied, and the requirements of the Companies Act
of South Africa.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for
Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing
audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to
performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and B). We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matter
We draw your attention to note 25, which describes the financial misconduct that occurred for the
financial year ending 28 February 2017. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises Statement
of Directors’ Responsibility and Approval and the Directors’ Report as required by the Companies Act
of South Africa. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S

REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE DIRECTORS OF SCI-BONO DISCOVERY CENTRE NPC (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:









Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting
From fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche
Registered Auditor
Per: Vusi Msibi
Partner
22 November 2017

PAGE | 58

DIRECTORS’
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REPORT

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre
NPC for the year ended 28 February 2017.
1.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS AND ACTIVITIES
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The accounting policies have been
applied consistently compared to the prior year.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company are set out in
these financial statements.

2.

DIRECTORATE
The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
DIRECTORS
Mr Abbey Witbooi
Rev Frank Chikane
Ms Gail Campbell
Mr Sathie Gounden
Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka
Ms Patricia Moloka
Adv Lentswe Mokgatle
Prof Bongani Bantwini
Mr Ganelang Zeth Malele
Mrs Nandipha Madiba
Dr Khulekani Sitole
Mr Andries Tshabalala
Ms Keitumetse Bokaba

3.

DESIGNATION
Director (Chairperson)
(Deputy Chairperson)
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

APPOINTED
24 July 2015
24 July 2015
20 April 2004
22 September 2011
24 July 2015
24 July 2015
24 July 2015
16 November 2016
16 November 2016
16 November 2016
16 November 2016
24 July 2015
17 July 2013

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
3.1

Dr Moretsele Chakane and Mr Phehello Tsotetsi have been appointed as Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer respectively.

3.2

Subsequent to year-end, it was identified that a financial loss had occurred due misconduct in the
gate takings. A criminal case has been opened with the South Africa Police Service and the extent
of the loss incurred was estimated at R253 077.
The personnel involved have since been dismissed and internal controls enhanced to manage the
gate takings more adequately.

4.

GOING CONCERN
The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for
the foreseeable future and accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The directors have satisfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it
has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are
not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the company. The directors are also
not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending
changes to legislation which may affect the company.

5.

AUDITORS
Deloitte & Touche continued in office as auditors for the company for the 2016/17 financial year audit.
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REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Ms Mbali Mtshali.
I hereby confirm, in my capacity of Secretary of Sci-Bono Discovery Centre NPC, that for the year
ended 28 February 2017, the entity has filed all required returns and notices in terms of the Companies Act
71 of 2008 and that all such returns and notices are to the best of my knowledge and belief true, correct and
up to date.
Postal address:
PO Box 61882
Marshalltown
2107
Business address:
Sci-Bono Discovery Centre
Miriam Makeba & President Street
Newtown
Johannesburg
2001
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 28 FEBRUARY 2017
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 28 FEBRUARY 2017

ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Current Assets
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Notes

2017
R

2016
R

3
4

421 891 903
658 893

340 425 640
820 221

422 550 796

341 245 861

41 355 794
230 231 041
18 468 618

63 089 211
360 063 745
13 233 458

290 055 453

436 386 414

712 606 249

777 632 275

170 880 173
200 888 992

86 059 123
202 642 982

371 769 165

288 702 105

5
6
7

Total Assets
Reserves and Liabilities
Revaluation reserves
Retained surplus

8

LIABILITIES
Non-current Liabilities
Deferred income (Government grants)

9

196 088 547

199 251 265

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Deferred income (Government grants)
Provisions

11
9
10

18 846 611
124 708 559
1 193 367

31 686 755
256 784 052
1 208 098

Total Liabilities

144 748 537
340 837 084

289 678 905
488 930 170

Total Reserves and Liabilities

712 606 249

777 632 275
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE SURPLUS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2017
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 28 FEBRUARY 2017

Notes
Revenue
Other income
Total expenditure
Loss due to fraud

12
13
26

Operating (deficit)/surplus
Investment revenue
Finance costs

14
15
16

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive surplus:
Items that will not be re-classified to surplus or loss:
Gains and losses on property revaluation

8

2017
R

2016
R

1 253 596
1 284 552
572 645 866
590 720 903
(602 816 535) (535 628 056)
–
(2 611 898)
(28 917 073)
25 293 192
(13 287)

53 765 501
20 199 911
(37 981)

(3 637 168)

73 927 431

86 704 227

–

Other comprehensive surplus for the year net of taxation

86 704 227

–

Total Surplus for the year

83 067 059

73 927 431

PAGE | 62

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2017
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES FOR THE YEAR 28 FEBRUARY 2017
Revaluation
reserves
R

Retained
surplus
R

Total
reserves
R

Balance at 1 March 2014
Surplus for the year

88 748 935
–

100 681 405
25 344 334

189 430 340
25 344 334

Total comprehensive surplus for the year
Transfer between reserves

–
(1 344 906)

25 344 334
1 344 906

25 344 334
–

Total contributions and distributions recognised
directly in reserves

(1 344 906)

1 344 906

–

Balance at 1 March 2015
Surplus for the year

87 404 029
–

127 370 645
73 927 431

214 774 674
73 927 431

Total comprehensive surplus for the year
Transfer between reserves

–
(1 344 906)

73 927 431
1 344 906

73 927 431
–

Total contributions and distributions recognised
directly in reserves

(1 344 906)

1 344 906

–

Balance at 29 February 2016
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

86 059 123
86 704 227

202 642 982
(3 637 168)

288 702 105
83 067 059

Total comprehensive surplus for the year
Transfer between reserves

86 704 227
(1 883 177)

(3 637 168)
1 883 177

83 067 059
–

Total contributions and distributions recognised
directly in reserves

(1 883 177)

1 883 177

–

200 888 992

371 769 165

Balance at 28 February 2017

170 880 173
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2017
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR 28 FEBRUARY 2017

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Investment revenue
Finance costs

19

Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from insurance claim/sale of assets
Purchase of other intangible assets
Purchase of financial assets
(Purchase)/sale of financial assets

3
4

Net cash from investing activities
Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year
Effect of exchange rate movement on cash balances
Total cash at end of the year

7

2017
R

2016
R

(146 081 585)
25 293 192
(13 287)

244 675 325
20 199 911
(37 981)

(120 801 680)

264 837 255

(4 169 412)
(9 103 632)
205 855
53 725
–
(838 912)
–
–
129 832 705 (256 388 438)
125 869 148

(266 277 257)

5 067 468
13 233 458
167 692

(1 440 002)
14 981 952
(308 492)

18 468 618

13 233 458
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ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The audited annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and the Companies Act of 2008. The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented
in South African Rands.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty, in preparing the audited annual
financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available
information and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results
in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the financial statements.
Significant judgements include:
Trade receivables and loans receivable
The company assesses its Trade receivables and Loans receivable for impairment at the end of each
reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or loss,
the company makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
Fair value estimation
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The carrying value of trade creditors are assumed to approximate their fair values.
Deferred income
Management applies judgement in assessing whether grant income cannot be matched to the
related cost and therefore will be deferred.
Depreciation rates and residual values
Management applies estimation and judgement in determining the useful lives and residual values
of property, plant and equipment.
Valuation of exhibits
Management view the exhibits as unique assets, however management will still apply judgement in
determining the useful lives and fair value of the exhibitions under Property, Plant and Equipment.
The exhibits will be treated under the normal Property, Plant and Equipment accounting policy.
Revaluation of buildings
Land and buildings are revalued independently every 5 years. A more frequent valuation will be
obtained if there is evidence that indicates this is necessary. The buildings were revalued based on
market equivalent values.
Revaluations are based on current market conditions.

1.2

Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
company; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment
and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses except for buildings which is carried at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity. The increase is
recognised in surplus or loss to the extent that it reverses are valuation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in surplus or loss.
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or
loss in the current period.
The decrease is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other
comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in the revaluation surplus in Reserves.
The revaluation surplus in reserves related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is
transferred directly to retained earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount and depreciation based on
the original cost of the asset.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful
lives to their estimated residual value.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item
Appliances
Buildings
Computer equipment
Exhibits
Furniture and fixtures
Laboratory equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Plant and machinery
Signage
Telephone and equipment
Tools

Average useful life
4 years
70 years
4 years
10 years
7 years
4 years
7 years
5 years
5 years
4 years
7 years
5 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted
for as a change in accounting estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or loss unless it is included in the
carrying amount of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included
in surplus or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
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1.3

Capital work in progress
The company has capital work in progress that are disclosed as property, plant and equipment for
the current projects. The cost of these projects will be capitalised to the asset. Completed projects
will be recognised under property, plant and equipment on completion.
Once the asset has reached the location and condition as intended by management, capitisation of
the costs cease. These costs are expensed in the statement of surplus.

1.4

Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense
when it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised when:
•
•
•
•
•

it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
there is an ability to use or sell it.
it will generate probable future economic benefits.
there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the asset.
• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every
period-end.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual
values as follows:
Item

Useful life

Software
1.5

5 years

Financial instruments
Classification
The company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
• Financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss – designated
• Loans and receivables
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained/incurred
and takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for
derivatives and financial assets designated as at fair value through surplus or loss, which shall not
be classified out of the fair value through surplus or loss category.
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to the contractual

Software
1.5

5 years

Financial instruments
Classification
The company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
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• Financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss – designated
• Loans and receivables
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

ACCOUNTING
Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained/incurred
POLICIES
and takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for
derivatives and financial assets designated as at fair value through surplus or loss, which shall not
be classified out of the fair value through surplus or loss category.
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.
The company
classifies(Continued)
financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a
ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

financial asset, a financial liability or a reserves instrument in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for Reserves investments for which
a fair value is not determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets.
For financial instruments Audited
which are
not at
fair value
through surplus
orended
loss,28transaction
Annual
Financial
Statements
for the year
February 2017 costs
13are
included in the initial measurement of the instrument.
Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through surplus or loss are recognised in
surplus or loss.
Subsequent measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through surplus or loss are subsequently measured at fair value,
with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value being included in surplus or loss for the
period.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, less accumulated impairment losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.
Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial
asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the company establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making
maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days
overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or loss within operating expenses. When a trade
receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses
in surplus or loss.
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days
overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
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The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
ACCOUNTING
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or loss within operating expenses. When a trade
receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses
POLICIES
in surplus or loss.
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

1.6

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.
Impairment of assets

Impairment
assets at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that
The
companyofassesses
an
may be
impaired.
If anyend
such
exists,
the whether
companythere
estimates
recoverable
Theasset
company
assesses
at each
of indication
the reporting
period
is anythe
indication
that
Audited
Annual
Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017
14 amount
of
the
asset.
an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable

1.6

amount
theindication
asset. that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the
If
there isofany
individual
If it is not
possible
tomay
estimate
the recoverable
amountamount
of the individual
asset,
the
If there is asset.
any indication
that
an asset
be impaired,
the recoverable
is estimated
for the
recoverable
amount
of
the
cash-generating
unit
to
which
the
asset
belongs
is
determined.
individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs
to
and its value
in use.
Thesell
recoverable
amount
of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs
to the
sellrecoverable
and its valueamount
in use. of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
If
asset
is
reduced
to
its
recoverable
amount.
That
reduction
is anamount,
impairment
loss.
If the recoverable amount
of an asset
is less
than
its carrying
the carrying
amount of the
asset
is reducedloss
to its
amount.
That
is an impairment
loss. or amortisation is
An
impairment
of recoverable
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at cost
lessreduction
any accumulated
depreciation
recognised
immediately
in
surplus
or
loss.
Any
impairment
loss
of
a
revalued
asset
is treated as isa
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation
or amortisation
revaluation
decrease.
recognised immediately in surplus or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a
revaluation
decrease.at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment
An
entity assesses
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recognised
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thanthere
goodwill
mayindication
no longerthat
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may have
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dateother
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anorimpairment
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no longer
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exists,
the recoverable
of those
assets are
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A
reversal If
ofany
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impairment
loss
of assets
carried atamounts
cost less
accumulated
depreciation
amortisation
other
than
goodwill
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recognised
immediately
in
surplus
or
loss.
Any
reversal
of an
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
or
impairment
loss
of
a
revalued
asset
is
treated
as
a
revaluation
increase.
amortisation other than goodwill is recognised immediately in surplus or loss. Any reversal of an
1.7

impairmentbenefits
loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.
Employee

1.7

Employee benefits
Short-term
employee benefits
The cost of employee
short-term benefits
employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is
Short-term
rendered,
such
as
paid
vacation
leave
and sick
leave,payable
bonuses,
and 12
non-monetary
benefits
such as
The cost of short-term employee
benefits,
(those
within
months after
the service
is
medical
care),
are
recognised
in
the
period
in
which
the
service
is
rendered
and
are
not
discounted.
rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as
medical care),
are recognised
Defined
contribution
plans in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
Paymentscontribution
to defined contribution
retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall
Defined
plans
due.
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall

1.8

due.
Provisions
and contingencies

1.8

Provisions
andrecognised
contingencies
Provisions are
when:
are recognised
when:
•Provisions
the company
has a present
obligation as a result of a past event;
• the
it is company
probable has
thata an
outflow
of resources
embodying
present
obligation
as a result
of a pasteconomic
event; benefits will be required to
the obligation;
• settle
it is probable
that anand
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
• settle
a reliable
can
be made of the obligation.
the estimate
obligation;
and
•Theaamount
reliable of
estimate
can be
made
of thevalue
obligation.
a provision
is the
present
of the expenditure expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is
rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as
medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
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Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall
due.

1.8 Provisions and contingencies
ACCOUNTING
Provisions are recognised when:
POLICIES
• the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The provision shall be initially recognised at the best possible
estimate at the reporting date. This value should take into account, if material, the time value
of money. When the provision has a reimbursive condition from a third party, the
reimbursement asset is to be recognised separately on when it is virtually certain payment will be
received.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

1.9

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.
Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
• the company will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
• the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs that they are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in
the statement of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the
Audited
Annual
Financial
15
grant in arriving at the carrying
amount
of the
asset. Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017
Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the surplus or loss (separately).

1.10 Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the
amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade
discounts and volume rebates, and value added tax.
Interest is recognised, in surplus or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
Gate entrance fee is recognised when the amount is received.
Donations are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
into the company and revenue can be reliably measured.
1.11 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready
for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined as
follows:
• Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset less any temporary investment of those borrowings
• Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed
the total borrowing costs incurred
The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:
• expenditures for the asset have occurred;
• borrowing costs have been incurred, and
• activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.
Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset

qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready
for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined as
follows:
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• Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset less any temporary investment of those borrowings
• Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed
the total borrowing costs incurred

ACCOUNTING
The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:
POLICIES
• expenditures for the asset have occurred;

• borrowing costs have been incurred, and
• activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.
Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are complete.
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.12 Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency
at the date of the transaction.

At the end of the reporting period:

16

• foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;
• non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
Annual Financial
for the yearat
ended
February
•Audited
non-monetary
items Statements
that are measured
fair 28
value
in a2017
foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items
at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or
in previous financial statements are recognised in surplus or loss in the period in which they arise.

1.13 Deferred income
Government grants shall be recognised in surplus or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to
compensate.
Grants related to income are presented as part of surplus or loss, either separately or under a
general heading such as ‘Other income’; alternatively, they are deducted in reporting the related
expense.

2.

2.1
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AMENDMENT

Reissue of a complete standard
with all the chapters incorporated

Original issue

Amendment to defer the effective
date to
1 January 2018

Clarifications to IFRS 1

Original issue

Amendments arising under the
Disclosure Initiative

Amendments as result of the
Disclosure initiative

STANDARD

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

IFRS 15: Revenue from
contracts with customers

IFRS 15: Revenue from
contracts with

IFRS 15: Revenue from
contracts with customers

IFRS 16: Leases

IAS 1: Presentation of Financial
statements

IAS 7: Cash Flow Statement

January 2016

December 2014

January 2016

April 2016

September 2015

May 2014

July 2014

DATE ISSUED

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018

Annual periods beginning
customers on or after
1 January 2018

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017

Annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018

EFFECTIVE DATE

The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for
the company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 March 2017 or later periods:

Standards and interpretations not yet effective

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

65 343
441 449 472
22 947
12 195 985
15 169 983
4 340 412
1 136 630
1 224 820
3 411 200
236 575
199 653
146 165
479 599 183

Total

(57 707 282)

(47 108)
(34 492 935)
–
(5 990 687)
(11 130 563)
(2 419 117)
(576 197)
(705 141)
(1 954 148)
(106 844)
(154 473)
(130 069)

2017
R
R
Cost/ Accumulated
Valuation Depreciation

Appliances
Buildings
Capital work in progress
Computer equipment
Exhibits
Furniture and fixtures
Laboratory equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment
Signage
Telephone equipment
Tools

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Figures in Rand

NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

421 891 903

18 235
406 956 537
22 947
6 205 298
4 039 420
1 921 295
560 433
519 679
1 457 052
129 731
45 180
16 096

Carrying
value

383 783 592

71 045
347 463 575
22 947
9 597 736
15 934 829
4 696 955
1 136 630
1 388 452
2 886 737
236 575
201 356
146 755

(43 357 952)

(62 135)
(22 291 312)
–
(4 491 704)
(10 986 108)
(2 304 912)
(417 669)
(726 874)
(1 703 012)
(83 063)
(163 339)
(127 824)

Cost/ Accumulated
Valuation depreciation

2016

340 425 640

8 910
325 172 263
22 947
5 106 032
4 948 721
2 392 043
718 961
661 578
1 183 725
153 512
38 017
18 931

Carrying
value

PAGE | 72

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017

3.

20

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017

Totals

Appliances
Buildings
Capital work
in progress
Computer
equipment
Exhibits
Furniture and
fixtures
Laboratory
equipment
Motor
vehicles
Office
equipment
Signage
Telephone
equipment
Tools

3 199 802
–

16 720
–
–

674 441
–

13 800
–

5 106 032
4 948 721

2 392 043

718 961

661 578

1 183 725
153 512

38 017
18 931

4 169 412

–

22 947

340 425 640

13 052
251 597

Additions

8 910
325 172 263

Opening
balance

(195 071)

–
–

–
–

(163 632)

–

(5 879)

(25 561)
–

–

–
–

Disposals

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – 2017

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Figures in Rand

NOTES TO THE
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86 704 227

–
–

–
–

–

–

–

–
–

–

–
86 704 227

Revaluation

(144 910)

–
–

(26 184)
(1)

–

1 117

(654)

(34 487)
(84 686)

–

(13)
(1)

Other
movements
relating to
prior period

“R”

(9 221 022)

(6 638)
(2 835)

–
(23 780)

(125 536)

(159 645)

(482 257)

(2 045 520)
(824 615)

–

(3 715)
(5 171 551)

153 623

–
–

(374 931)
–

147 268

–

1 323

5 032
–

–

–
–

Accumulated
depreciation
on disposed
assets
Depreciation

421 891 903

45 180
16 096

1 457 052
129 731

519 679

560 433

1 921 296

6 205 298
4 039 419

22 947

182 345
406 956 535

Total
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3.

Totals

Appliances
Buildings
Capital work in
progress
Computer
equipment
Exhibits
Furniture and
fixtures
Laboratory
equipment
Motor vehicles
Office
equipment
Signage
Telephone
equipment
Tools
–

4 127 184
524 907

861 147

468 892
368 509

561 126
93 995

13 980
–

9 103 632

1 840 810
5 232 613

1 388 030

353 226
369 558

1 033 335
77 814

28 272
24 812

338 514 171

5 256
2 078 636

4 625
326 718 843

1 442 233

Additions

Opening
balance

(61 727)

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

–
–

–
–

–
–

583 357

–
–

(27 182)
–
(34 545)

(1 419 286)

–
835 929

Transfers

51 374

–
–

–
–

–
51 374

–

–
–

–

–
–

Other
movements
relating to
prior period

“R”

–

–
–

Disposals

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – 2016

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Figures in Rand

NOTES TO THE
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(7 181 810)

(4 235)
(5 881)

(410 736)
(18 297)

(103 157)
(127 863)

(405 946)

(834 780)
(808 799)

–

(971)
(4 461 145)

Depreciation

–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

–
–

–

–
–

Revaluation

340 425 640

38 017
8 931

1 183 725
153 512

718 961
661 578

2 392 043

5 106 032
4 948 721

22 947

8 910
325 172 263

Total
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3.

(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Revaluation of buildings
Land and buildings are re-valued independently every 5 years. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amounts do not differ materially from those that would be determined
using fair values at the end of each reporting period. Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
such land and buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss,
in which case the increase is credited to profit and loss to the extent of the decrease previously expensed.
A decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognised in
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. The buildings were not revalued during the year.
The revaluation was conducted on the 1st August 2016 based on market equivalent values in the area by
an independent valuation brokering company, Mirfin and Mr Gavin Jacobs with valuer registration number
3368/2 was seconded to conduct the valuation.
These assumptions were based on current market conditions in 2016.
The carrying value of the revalued assets under the cost model would have been:

Buildings

2017
R

2016
R

284 728 972

284 477 375

A register containing the information required by Regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations, 2011 is
available for inspection at the registered office of the company.
4.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2017
R
Cost Accumulated
amortisation

2016
R
Carrying
value

Cost Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying
value

Software
Website
development
cost

1 079 668

(420 775)

658 893

1 079 668

(259 447)

820 221

49 840

(49 840)

–

49 840

(49 840)

–

Total

1 129 508

(470 615)

658 893

1 129 508

(309 287)

820 221

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2017
“R”
Opening
Balance
Software

820 221

Additions Amortisation
–

Total

(161 327)

658 894

Additions Amortisation

Total

Reconciliation of intangible assets – 2016
“R”
Opening
Balance
Software

42 152

838 912

(60 843)

820 221
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (NET OF IMPAIRED AMOUNT)

Trade receivables net of allowance
Prepayments
Deposit
VAT
Sundry receivables

2017
R

2016
R

2 308 502
11 090 224
85 337
27 760 498
111 233

25 843 549
26 664 595
83 320
10 259 231
238 517

41 355 794

63 089 211

Gross receivables can be analysed as follows:
“R”
2017
Advances
Trade receivables
Sundry receivables
VAT
Deposits

Advances

Current not
yet past due

Past due but
not impaired

Impaired
amount

Total gross
amount

11 090 224
–
–
–
–

–
38 784
33 115
34 071 615
85 337

–
2 542 901
449 956
–
–

–
(273 183)
(371 837)
(6 311 117)
–

11 090 224
2 308 502
111 233
27 760 498
85 337

11 090 224

34 228 851

2 992 856

(6 956 137)

41 355 794

“R”
2016
Advances
Trade receivables
Sundry receivables
VAT
Deposits

Advances

Current not
yet past due

Past due but
not impaired

Impaired
amount

Total gross
amount

26 664 595
–
–
–
–

–
25 869 324
–
10 705 402
83 320

–
500 117
471 526
–
–

–
(525 891)
(233 009)
(446 171)
–

26 664 595
25 843 549
238 517
10 259 231
83 320

26 664 595

36 658 045

971 643

(1 205 071)

63 089 211

The impairment pertaining to VAT is as a result of SARS VAT input verifications which are still in progress
as at year end and the vat which was not yet claimed from SARS. Reconciliations are still under way and
submissions will be finalised with SARS in terms of invoices requested for verification and the revised
VAT return submissions.
Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

30 – 60 Days
61 – 90 Days
91 – 120 Days
121- 150 Days
> 150 Days

2017
R

2016
R

27 140
14 657
2 019 182
37 642
444 280

11 898
29 357
717
9 754
448 391

2 542 901

500 117

Advances
Trade receivables
Sundry receivables
VAT
Deposits

26 664 595
–
–
–
–

–
25 869
471 526
10 705 402
83 320

–
324 500 117
(233 009)
–
–

–
(525 891)
238 517
(446 171)
–

26 664 595
25 843 549

26 664 595

36 658 045

971 643

(1 205 071)

63 089 211
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submissions will be finalised
with SARS in terms of invoices requested for verification and the revised
VAT return submissions.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

30 – 60 Days
61 – 90 Days
91 – 120 Days
121- 150 Days
> 150 Days

2017
R

2016
R

27 140
14 657
2 019 182
37 642
444 280

11 898
29 357
717
9 754
448 391

2 542 901

500 117

273 183

525 891

Trade and other receivables impaired
As of 28 February 2017, trade and other receivables of R273 183
(2016: R525 891) were impaired and provided for.
The ageing of these receivables is as follows:
>150 days

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017

At fair value through surplus or loss – designated
Nedgroup Investments Core Income Fund
Nedgroup Investment Core Income ABIL Retention Fund

Current assets
Designated as a fair value financial asset through profit or loss

23

2017
R

2016
R

223 902 345
6 328 696

351 594 019
8 469 726

230 231 041

360 063 745

230 231 041

360 063 745

Fair value information
Financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss are recognised at fair value, which is therefore equal
to their carrying amounts.
The following classes of financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss are measured to fair value
using quoted market prices:
Listed units
The listed units as at 28 February 2017 are as follows:
Nedbank Group Investment Core Income fund C –
Nedbank Group Investment Core Income fund C2 –
Nedgroup Core Income ABIL Retention Fund –

0.00 units at 100.06 cents/units
223 723 366.23 units at 100.08 cents/units
6 299 089.6 units at 100.47 cents/units

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss
For financial assets recognised at fair value, disclosure is required of a fair value hierarchy which reflects
the significance of the inputs used to make the measurements.
Level 1 represents those assets which are measured using unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets.
Level 2 applies inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets either directly (as prices)
or indirectly (derived from prices).
Level 3 applies inputs which are not based on observable market data.
2017

2016

Designated as a fair value financial asset through profit or loss

230 231 041

360 063 745

Fair value information
Financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss are recognised at fair value, which is therefore equal
to their carrying amounts.
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Nedbank Group Investment Core Income fund C –
Nedbank Group Investment Core Income fund C2 –
Nedgroup Core Income ABIL Retention Fund –

0.00 units at 100.06 cents/units
223 723 366.23 units at 100.08 cents/units
6 299 089.6 units at 100.47 cents/units

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets at fair value through surplus or loss
For financial assets recognised at fair value, disclosure is required of a fair value hierarchy which reflects
the significance of the inputs used to make the measurements.
Level 1 represents those assets which are measured using unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets.
Level 2 applies inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets either directly (as prices)
or indirectly (derived from prices).
Level 3 applies inputs which are not based on observable market data.

Level 1
Nedgroup Investment Core Income Fund
Nedgroup Investment Core Income ABIL Retention Fund

7.

2016
R

223 902 345
6 328 696

351 594 019
8 469 725

230 231 041

360 063 745

2017
R

2016
R

3 323
18 392 962
72 333

5 981
1 680 025
11 547 452

18 468 618

13 233 458

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand
Bank balances
Short-term deposits

8.

2017
R

REVALUATION RESERVE
The revaluation reserve relates to the takeon assets from Jet Education Services on inception of Sci-Bono
Discovery Centre NPC for no consideration in the period ended 28 February 2005. The asset taken over,
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017
24
where accounted for at the fair value at the date of transfer.

Opening balance
Revaluation recognised in the current year
Movement arising from prior year adjustments
Utilisation of assets during the year

9.

2017
R

2016
R

86 059 123
86 704 227
277 225
(2 160 402)

87 404 029
–
–
(1 344 906)

170 880 173

86 059 123

2017
R

2016
R

196 088 547
124 708 559

199 251 265
256 784 052

320 797 106

456 035 317

199 251 264

202 413 983

DEFERRED INCOME (GOVERNMENT GRANTS)

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Non-current liability portion
Opening balance

8.

REVALUATION RESERVE
The revaluation reserve relates to the takeon assets from Jet Education Services on inception of Sci-Bono
Discovery Centre NPC for no consideration in the period ended 28 February 2005. The asset taken PAGE
over,| 79
where accounted for at the fair value at the date of transfer.
2017
R

2016
R

86 059 123
86 704 227
277 225
(2 160 402)

87 404 029
–
–
(1 344 906)

170 880 173

86 059 123

2017
R

2016
R

196 088 547
124 708 559

199 251 265
256 784 052

320 797 106

456 035 317

Non-current liability portion
Opening balance
Realisation of deferred income

199 251 264
(3 162 718)

202 413 983
(3 162 718)

Closing balance

196 088 546

199 251 265

Current liability portion
Opening balance
Grants received during the year
Realisation of deferred income

256 784 052
33 566 466
427 939 295
805 172 476
(560 014 788) (581 954 890)

Closing balance

124 708 559

Opening balance
NOTES
TO THE
Revaluation recognised in the current year
Movement arising from prior year adjustments
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Utilisation of assets during the year

9.

DEFERRED INCOME (GOVERNMENT GRANTS)

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

256 784 052

Non-current liabilities
The deferred income relates to government grant received for the construction of phase I and II, which
was completed in the financial year ended 28 February 2011. The deferred income would be amortised
and realised as income over the useful lives of the building. The nature and extent of government grants
recognised in the audited annual financial statements and an indication of other forms of government
assistance from which the entity has directly benefited; and
Current liabilities
The deferred income recognised relates to unfulfilled conditions attached to the grant assistance received.
The unfulfilled grant conditions would be completed within the next 12 months.
10. PROVISIONS
Reconciliation of provisions – 2017

Provision for leave pay

“R”
Opening
balance

Movement
during
the year

Total

1 208 098

(14 731)

1 193 367

Reconciliation of provisions – 2016

Provision for leave pay

“R”
Opening
balance

Movement
during
the year

Total

872 719

335 379

1 208 098

Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017
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(Continued)

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables
Amounts received in advance
Payroll accruals
Other accruals
Deposits held

2017
R

2016
R

14 237 765
–
3 293 056
1 204 418
111 372

20 999 086
20 600
3 352 274
7 198 169
116 626

18 846 611

31 686 755

1 253 596

1 284 552

(167 693)
541 161
205 855
3 162 719
1 084 791
567 819 033

203 395
1 671 234
53 725
3 162 718
3 674 941
581 954 890

572 645 866

590 720 903

19 831 125
503 139 634
10 324 464
34 523 810

18 346 210
512 411 355
–
51 197 327

567 819 033

581 954 891

The average credit period for certain goods is five months. Interest is
not charged on these amounts as they are within the credit limits
granted by the suppliers. Interest is charged at an average rate of 4.5%
on overdue outstanding balances. The amount of interest paid on
overdue amounts is R13 287 (2016: R 37 892).
12. GATE TAKINGS
13. OTHER INCOME
Profit and loss on exchange differences
Rental income
Insurance refunds
Amortisation of the deferred income
Venue hire
Other income recognised
13.1 Other income recognised
Donations received from private funders
Government Grants with conditions – GDE
Unconditional Government Grants – GDE
Revenue generated through implemented projects
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2017
R

2016
R

–
671 592

1 245 969
428 163

671 592

1 674 132

41 447
–
167 693

8 173
(2 611 898)
(203 395)

9 382 349
44 396 383
68 866 009
(24 469 626)

7 242 653
46 086 973
55 166 266
(9 079 293)

527 472 053

468 372 479

25 293 192

20 199 911

13 287

37 981

2017
R

2016
R

748 282
630 188

–
404 250

1 378 470

404 250

14. OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR
Operating surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Operating lease charges
Premises
Equipment Rental
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss due to fraud
(Gain)/loss on exchange differences
Depreciation and amortisation on property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets
Employee costs
Total payroll cost
Payroll cost for personnel deployed in the management of the project
Projects related costs
The allocation of the payroll cost to the projects is limited by the
amount of available funds allocated towards administration of these
projects
15. INVESTMENT REVENUE
Interest in the investment (call) accounts
16. FINANCE COSTS
Interest paid on overdue accounts
17. TAXATION
The company is exempt from taxation as it is a Public Benefit Organisation.

18. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Internal Audit Fees
External Audit Fees
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19. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Surplus before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Other adjustments on expenditure and assets relating
to the prior year
Revaluation Surplus
Disposal of assets
Profit (loss) on foreign exchange
Interest received – investment
Finance costs
Movements in provisions
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Deferred income (Government grants)

(Continued)

2017
R

2016
R

83 067 059

73 927 431

9 382 349

7 242 653

(396 331)
(86 704 227)
41 447
167 693
(25 293 192)
13 287
(14 731)

–
–
61 727
203 395
(20 199 911)
37 981
335 379

21 733 417
(16 002 863)
(132 075 493)

(52 327 221)
15 339 023
220 054 868

(146 081 585)

244 675 325

20. RELATED PARTIES
Relationships
The company conducts a number of projects in collaboration with the Gauteng Department of Education
(GDE) through a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) dated 7 April 2015.
The MOA states that the primary purpose of the agreement is to facilitate and regulate the working
relationship between the GDE and Sci-Bono, and to provide a formal agreement which defines:
The obligations of the GDE to provide funding to Sci-Bono for the approved science centre operations and
GDE projects; and
The obligations of Sci-Bono to effectively implement science centre operations and all the projects and
tasks which it undertakes, at the request of the GDE, and with resources provided by the GDE.
2017
R

2016
R

398 298 679

727 259 000

Compensation to directors and other key management
Remuneration to key management of the company
Remuneration to directors

3 765 908
1 038 744

3 633 677
200 900

Total remuneration to directors and key management

4 804 652

3 834 577

Related party transactions
Grant income received from related parties
Gauteng Department of Education Operations
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21. DIRECTORS, SUB-COMMITTEE AND PRESCRIBED OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION
21.1 Prescribed officers’ remuneration
The prescribed officers are the key management of the company.
2017

“R”
Emoluments

Mr Anele Davids
Ms Fikile Mapela
Mr David Kramer (*)
Ms Tebogo Gule

Other
Company
Benefits* Contributions**

Total

782 931
880 146
562 073
698 980

90 225
90 225
19 276
63 522

170 707
168 639
77 689
161 495

1 043 863
1 139 010
659 038
923 997

2 924 130

263 248

578 530

3 765 908

* Other benefits comprise bonuses, travel allowance and re-imbursive travel expense for use of own car.
** Company contributions comprises provident fund and medical aid contributions paid on behalf of the staff members.
* Mr David Kramer is the former CEO and director of the company and has since left the company on the 30th June 2016.

( )

2016

“R”
Emoluments

Mr David Kramer
Mr Anele Davids
Ms Fikile Mapela
Ms Tebogo Gule

Other
Company
Benefits* Contributions**

Total

1 085 489
755 734
744 066
381 174

132 154
69 038
66 166
30 133

141 374
91 431
94 078
42 840

1 359 017
916 203
904 310
454 147

2 966 463

297 491

369 723

3 633 677

* Other benefits comprise bonuses, travel allowance and re-imbursive travel expense for use of own car.
** Company contributions comprises provident fund and medical aid contributions paid on behalf of the staff members.

21.2 Directors and the sub-committees
The committees of the company are the Board; the Audit and Risk Committee; the
Finance- Business Committee, the Board Procurement Committee and the Social and Ethics
Committee. The sub-committees are attended by the board members with the exception of the
Audit and Risk Committee which encompasses also independent members.

Mr Phiroshaw Camay
Rev Frank Chikane
Ms Gail Campbell
Ms Selemeng Mokose
Prof Bongani Bantwini
Mr Sathie Gounden
Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka
Ms Nandipha Madiba
Mr Lentswe Mokgatle
Mr Ganelang Zeth Malele
Ms Patricia Maloka
Mr Phakamile Mainganya
Mr Stephen Tibini(*)
Ms Val Hellman(*)
Dr Khulekani Sitole
Mr Abbey Witbooi
Mr Ashley Dickens(*)
( )

2017
R

2016
R

113 000
45 512
30 500
22 000
47 417
79 186
104 283
15 254
72 153
28 654
182 549
19 063
2 500
38 130
199 649
20 000

85 500
8 300
17 900
29 400
9 300
12 600
10 800
1 500
6 000
1 500
12 100
4 500

** Company contributions comprises provident fund and medical aid contributions paid on behalf of the staff members.
( )
* Mr David Kramer is the former CEO and director of the company and has since left the company on the 30th June 2016.
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Mr David Kramer
Mr Anele Davids
Ms Fikile Mapela
Ms Tebogo Gule

Other
Company
Benefits* Contributions**

Total

1 085 489
755 734
744 066
381 174

132 154
69 038
66 166
30 133

141 374
91 431
94 078
42 840

1 359 017
916 203
904 310
454 147

2 966 463

297 491

369 723

3 633 677

* Other benefits comprise travel allowance and re-imbursive travel expense for use of own car.
** Company contributions comprises provident fund and medical aid contributions paid on behalf of the staff members.

21.2 Directors and the sub-committees
The committees of the company are the Board; the Audit and Risk Committee; the FinanceBusiness Committee, the Board Procurement Committee and the Social and Ethics Committee.
The sub-committees are attended by the board members with the exception of the Audit and Risk
Committee which encompasses also independent members.

Mr Phiroshaw Camay
Rev Frank Chikane
Ms Gail Campbell
Ms Selemeng Mokose
Prof Bongani Bantwini
Mr Sathie Gounden
Dr Vathiswa Papu-Zamxaka
Ms Nandipha Madiba
Mr Lentswe Mokgatle
Mr Ganelang Zeth Malele
Ms Patricia Moloka
Mr Phakamile Mainganya
Mr Stephen Tibini(*)
Ms Val Hellman(*)
Dr Khulekani Sitole
Mr Abbey Witbooi
Mr Ashley Dickens(*)
Ms Kgabi Manthata(*)

2017
R

2016
R

113 000
45 512
30 500
22 000
47 417
79 186
104 283
15 254
72 153
28 654
182 549
–
19 063
2 500
38 130
199 649
20 000
18 894

85 500
8 300
–
17 900
–
29 400
9 300
–
12 600
–
10 800
1 500
6 000
1 500
–
12 100
4 500
1 500

1 038 744

200 900

* These individuals are only independent Audit Committee members and not members of the Board as well. Refer to the Governance Section
of this Annual Report for detailed composition of the Committees.

( )

The fees paid to the directors include both the meeting fees and re-imbursive travel costs incurred
in attending these meetings.
Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2017
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(Continued)

22. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
“R”

2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
Trade and other
receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents

Financial
assets at fair
Debt
value instruments
Financial
through
at liabilities at
profit amortised amortised
Notes
or loss
cost
cost

5
–
6 230 231 041
7

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other
payables

11

Total Liabilities

Nonfinancial
assets and
liabilities

Total

2 419 735
–

–
–

38 936 059 41 355 794
– 230 231 041

–

18 468 617

–

230 231 041

20 888 352

–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–

–

18 846 611

–

18 846 611

–

–

18 846 611

–

18 846 611

Nonfinancial
assets and
liabilities

Total

–

18 468 617

38 936 059 290 055 452

“R”

2016
ASSETS
Current Assets
Trade and other
receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents

Financial
assets at fair
Debt
value instruments
Financial
through
at liabilities at
profit amortised amortised
Notes
or loss
cost
cost

5
6

–
360 063 745

26 165 386
–

–
–

7

–

13 233 458

–

360 063 745

39 398 844

–

–

31 666 154

–

20 600

31 686 754

–

31 645 554

–

20 600

31 686 754

Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other
payables
Total Liabilities

11

36 923 825 63 089 211
– 360 063 745
–

13 233 458

36 923 825 436 386 414
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23. RISK MANAGEMENT
Capital risk management
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns and benefits for stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The capital structure of the company consists of cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 7, and
reserves as disclosed in the statement of financial position.
There are no externally imposed capital requirements.
Financial risk management
The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash
flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Interest rate risk
As the company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the company’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The company only
deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counterparty.
No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counter parties.
Foreign exchange risk
The company does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.
24. GOING CONCERN
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going
concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in
the ordinary course of business.
25. FINANCIAL MISCONDUCT
Subsequent to financial year, management identified financial misconduct in the area of gate takings.
An internal investigation was as a result commission and the involved staff members suspended. The
outcome of the investigation necessitated internal disciplinary proceedings to follow and the outcome
of the disciplinary proceedings recommended dismissal of the said staff members. The number of
employees involved was three.
A case has also been opened with the South African Police Services and outcome thereof still pending
as at date of this report.
The amount quantified was estimated at R253 077 and the loss did not affect the prior financial years.
26. TOTAL EXPENDITURE
Total expenditure comprises both expenditure incurred in the management of projects implemented with
the conditional grants received and the cost incurred in the day to day management of the company:

Operational expenditure
Projects related expenditure

2017
R

2016
R

75 344 482
527 472 053

67 255 575
468 372 479

602 816 535

535 628 054

concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in
the ordinary course of business.
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R
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